UNIPULSE





OPERATION MANUAL Rev. 1.03

BE SURE TO READ BEFORE USE

Introduction

Thank you very much for purchasing our paperless printer DS252.

This product, as is connected to our loadcell indicators or digital indicators through the SI/F (two-wire serial interface), records indicated values etc. on a CF card. External equipment data other than our indicators can also be recorded with optional BCD input or RS-232C interface.

Read this manual and understand the descriptions carefully before use.

After reading the manual, always keep it handy so that it can be referred to at any time.

Safety Precautions

Be sure to read for safety.

In order to have an DS252 Paperless Printer used safely, notes I would like you to surely

follow the documents indicated separately on MARNING and ACAUTION

Notes indicated here are the serious contents related safety. Please use after understanding the contents well.

🕂 WARNING

Misuse may cause the risk of death or serious injury to persons.

Misuse may cause the risk of injury to persons or damage to property.

Warning on design

For the entire system to function safely when the DS252 becomes faulty or malfunctions, provide a safety circuit outside the DS252.

Warning on installation

Do not modify the DS252. Doing so may cause fire or electric shocks.

Do not install in the following environments.

- Places containing corrosive gas or flammable gas.
- Where the product may be splashed with water, oil or chemicals.

Warning on wiring

Do not connect a commercial power source directly to the signal input/output terminals.

For connection to the terminal block, be sure to use crimp-type terminals. Do not connect bare wires.

Be sure to ground the protective ground terminal.

Before performing the following, make sure that no power is applied.

- Attachment/detachment of connectors of options etc.
- Wiring/connection of cables to the signal input/output terminals.
- Connection to the ground terminal.

For connection to the signal input/output terminals, check the signal names and pin assignment numbers and then carry out wiring properly.

Before applying power, carefully check the wiring etc.

Warning for startup and maintenance

Use at a proper power supply voltage.

Do not damage the power cord. Doing so may cause fire or electric shocks.

Do not touch any signal input/output terminal while applying power. Doing so may cause electric shocks or malfunctions.

In case of smoke, an abnormal smell or strange sound, immediately turn off the power and disconnect the power cable.

Never disassemble, pressure-deform, or throw the built-in lithium battery into a fire. The battery may cause an explosion, fire, or leakage.

- Battery	
Model:	CR14250SE manufactured by SANYO Electric Co., Ltd.
Nominal voltage:	3V
Nominal capacity:	850mAh

Caution on installation

Do not install in the following environments.

- Places exposed to direct sunlight
- Where the temperature/humidity exceeds the range of the specifications.
- Places containing large quantities of salt or iron powder.
- Where the main body is directly affected by vibrations or shocks.

Take adequate shielding measures when using at the following locations.

- Near a power line.
- Where a strong electric field or magnetic field is formed.
- Where static electricity, relay noise or the like is generated.

Caution on wiring

For external inputs/outputs and options, use shielded cables.

Caution for startup and maintenance

For turning on/off the power, be sure to keep intervals of 5 seconds or more.

Caution for disposal

If you dispose of the product, handle it as industrial waste.

Features of the DS252

Recording of weighing data as electronic data

Since weighing data is recorded on a CF card in CSV format, the data can be retrieved by commercially available spreadsheet software, so that it can be easily processed by a PC.

Highly-advanced statistical operation function

Not only grand totals and sub totals, but also maximum, minimum, average, standard deviation, frequency distribution, etc. can be recorded.

Economical double recording

Due to both the recording function by which data from two indicators can be recorded and calculated, the statistical operation of a double weighing machine with two weighing heads can be managed by one unit.

Easy setting in an interactive manner

Each setting item and its current setting value are displayed on the LCD of the main body to facilitate setting operation.

Code sorting

Calculations sorted according to code can be made (100 on each channel at maximum) by assigning codes (within six numerical, alphabetical and katakana characters) to recorded data.

Perfect data backup

All setting values can be stored in a nonvolatile memory and other data in a lithium-battery-backed-up memory.

Selectable interfaces

Two SI/F channels are equipped as a standard. BCD input and RS-232C interface are available as an option. (Only one channel of either BCD or RS-232C can optionally be connected.)

RoHS-compliant product

The parts and attachments (including the instruction manual, packaging box, etc.) used for this unit are compliant with the RoHS Directive restricting the use of hazardous substances with regard to adverse effects on the environment and human body.

What is RoHS?

It is an abbreviation for Restriction on Hazardous Substances, which is implemented by the European Union (EU). The Directive restricts the use of six specific substances in electric and electronic equipment handled within EU borders. The six substances are lead, mercury, cadmium, hexavalent chromium, PBB (polybrominated biphenyls) and PBDE (polybrominated diphenyl ethers).

How to read this manual

The contents of this manual are broadly divided into the following six chapters:

1 to 2	Precautions for use, installation of the DS252 and connection with an indicator are explained. You will find basic ways to use the DS252.
3	. Settings to make use of the DS252 are explained.
4	Functions to make further use of the DS252 are explained.
5	How to connect and use the optional BCD input and RS-232C interface is explained.
6	Recorded data is explained.
7	Troubleshooting is explained.
Appendix	Specifications and after-sales service of the DS252 are explained.

Explanatory marks in this manual

Note	Attention or limitation for proper functioning of the DS252. Be sure to read this to prevent incorrect operation.
	Useful or referential information using the DS252. Recommendable in to read.

Contents of the package

Name	Quantity
DS252 body	1
Operation manual (this book)	1
Mini screwdriver	1
Control signal input connector 57-30500 DDK (Attached when the optional BCD input is equipped)	1

CONTENTS

1.	Before turning on the power1
	1-1. Part names and functions
	1-2. Front panel keys 4
	1-3. Rear panel input terminal block 6 1-3-1. Input equivalent circuit 6
	1-4. Power cord attachment
	1-5. Insertion and ejection of a CF card
2.	Connection with indicators9
	2-1. SI/F two-wire serial interface 10 2-1-1. About the SI/F 10 2-1-2. About the SI/F of the DS252 10
	2-2. SI/F connection
	2-3. Recording
	2-4. About input channels 14
	2-5. Recorded data input channels and beep sound 16 2-5-1. In case of individual record 16 2-5-2. In case of both record 16 2-5-3. What is recorded when there is no valid data at record-every time 16
3.	Basic operation of the DS25217
	3-1. Screen configuration
	3-2. Input value display183-2-1. Changing the input value display183-2-2. Contents of display203-2-3. Confirmation of recorded data22
	3-3. Records233-3-1. Recording of input values233-3-2. Contents of input values recorded233-3-3. Recording of sub totals243-3-4. Batch total253-3-5. Writing on a CF card26

3-4. Various settings	27
3-4-1. Basic setting operation	31
3-4-2. Explanation of each setting	33
01 : Date/Time	33
02, 03: Recorded Data Selection Ach, Bch	33
04, 05: Unit Selection Ach, Bch	34
06 : Record Every ON/OFF	35
07: Record Every Format	35
08 : Automatic Record ON/OFF	38
09 : Interval Record ON/OFF	38
10: Interval Seconds	39
11 : GT/ST Recording Format	39
12 : Type of Sub Totals	40
13, 15 : Target Value for Statistical Data Ach, Bch	41
14, 16 : Target Range for Statistical Data Ach, Bch	41
17 : Standard Deviation	42
18 : Data Adding ON/OFF	43
19 : Record Key ON/OFF	43
20 : Batch Total ON/OFF	44
21 : (Unassigned)	44
22 : Code Selection	45
23 : Number of Code Digits	45
24, 25 : Registration of Code Table Ach, Bch	46
26 : Code Sorting Type	47
27 : File Writing Mode Setting	47
28 : File Overwriting Mode Setting	48
29 : Error Input ON/OFF Setting	48
30 : Option Table Ch	49
31 : Maximum Recorded Count Setting	49
32 · Grand Total Timer	49
33 : Both Recording Mode Setting	50
	00
4. Advanced use	51
4-1. Sorting by code and code table	52
4-1-1. Code registration with the front panel keys	53
4-1-2. Code tables- difference from codes	54
4-1-3. Code table registration	วว 56
	57
4-2-1. How to operate a UF card	57

4-2-2. Explanation of each process	59
60 : CF Card Remaining Check 5	59
61, 62:Loading of Code Table (Ach, Bch)	50
63, 64 : Saving of Code Table (Ach, Bch)	51
65:Loading of Setting Value	51
66 : Saving of Setting Value6	52
67 : CF Card Format6	32
4-2-3. About the error display	33 ≈∕
4-2-4. Setting me	54 56
4-3. Maintenance mode	67
4-3-1. How to operate the maintenance mode	37
4-3-2. Explanation of each setting/operation	66
70:Version Display	38
71 : Self Test6	38
72 : Beep Sound ON/OFF 6	39
73: LCD Backlight Setting6	39
74:LCD Backlight Timeout Setting	39
75:Key Input Timeout Setting	70
76 : Display Switching Time Setting	70
77 : Data Clear	70
78 : Test Mode	71
4-4. Over records	71
4-4-1. Range over (U/L)	72
4-5. Deletion records	' 2
4-6. Date/time records	73
4-7. Initialization	73
5. Options	'5
5-1. BCD input	76
5-2. BCD input settings	30
5-2-1. Basic operation of the BCD input	30
5-2-2. Explanation of each setting	32
40 : BCD Input Monitor	32
41 : BCD Decimal Point Position	32
42 : BCD Data Logic	33
43 : BCD Minus Sign Logic	33
44 : BCD Over Logic	33
45 : BCD Strobe Logic 8	33

	5-3. RS-232C interface	84
	5-4. RS-232C settings 5-4-1. Basic operation of the RS-232C interface 5-4-2. Explanation of each setting	85 85 87
	46 : RS-232C Transmission Speed	87
	47 : RS-232C Parity Bit	87
	48 : RS-232C Data/Stop Bit	87
	49 : RS-232C Terminator	88
	50 : RS-232C Answer Mode	88 89
6.	Recorded data	91
	6-1. Recorded data amount	92
	6-2. Data format 6-2-1. Data labels 6-2-2. Recording of input data 6-2-3. Recording of ST (sub total) / GT (grand total)	93 93 94 95
	6-3. CF card	97 97 97 98
	6-4. Recorded data examples	98
7.	Troubleshooting1	01
	7-1. Classification of trouble	02
	7-2. The DS252 does not operate normally	03
	7-3. The DS252 does not function normally 1	05
	7-4. Others	06
A	opendix	07
	List of unit settings	08
	Character input table	09
	Introduction of options 1	10
	Product specifications of the DS252 1	11
	External views	12

1 Before turning on the power

Explanation of the appearance of the DS252

Part names and functions	2
Front panel keys	4
Rear panel input terminal block	6
Power cord attachment	7
Insertion and ejection of a CF card	8

1-1.Part names and functions

Part names and functions are briefly explained here.

Detailed explanations of respective parts will be given in relevant chapters respectively.

[Front panel]



Parts on front panel	
Name	Description
LCD	Displays the data sent from an indicator and setting values. (16 digits × 2 lines).
Status lamps	
RECORD lamp (green)	Lights in recording of data into the internal memory.
WRITE lamp (green)	Lights in writing of data on a CF card.
ERROR lamp (red)	Lights under abnormal conditions such that no CF card is inserted at the time of writing on a CF card.
Front panel keys	Press them for operating and setting the DS252.
CF card slot	Slot to insert a CF card for recording.

[Rear panel]



Parts on rear panel

Name	Description
Power terminal block	Connect the power cord. The power supply voltage is 24V DC.
Input terminal block	Connect various types of input. (1) to (7) for Ach and (8) to (14) for Bch
(1) and (8): COM	Common terminals of the external input terminal block. (1) and (8) are internally connected.
(2) and (9): REC	Short-circuit with the COM terminals for recording in the internal memory.
(3) and (10): WRITE (Note 1)	Short-circuit with the COM terminals for writing on a CF card.
(4) and (11): ST (Note 2)	Short-circuit with the COM terminals for recording sub totals.
(5) and (12): GT	Short-circuit with the COM terminals for recording grand totals.
(6) (7) SI/F Ach	Input terminal for SI/F (Ach). (No polarity.)
(13) (14) SI/F Bch	Input terminal for SI/F (Bch). (No polarity.)
Option space	Install an option for functional extension of the DS252. Either BCD input or RS-232C can be installed.
Frame ground (F.G.)	Grounding terminal. Be sure to ground to prevent electrostatic hazards etc.

Note 1: The Bch WRITE terminal (10) functions to record batch totals when the setting of "20: Batch Total ON/ OFF" (page 44) is ON.

Note 2: The Bch ST terminal (11) functions as external error signal input when the setting of "29: Error Input ON/OFF" (page 48) is ON.

1-2. Front panel keys

Although the key functions differ according to conditions, their basic functions, meanings and designations are briefly explained here.



Designations and functions of keys		
Key (designation)		Description
1 A	(Code A)	To go to the Ach code input (selection) screen and to input characters.
2 B	(Code B)	To go to the Bch code input (selection) screen and to input characters.
3 Date	(DATE)	To record date/time and to input characters.
4 START	(START)	To start interval records and to input characters.
5 stop	(STOP)	To stop interval records and to input characters.
6 WRITE	(WRITE)	To write data on a CF card and to input characters.
7 st	(ST)	To record sub totals and to input characters.
8 _{GT}	(GT)	To record grand totals and to input characters.
9 DEL	(DEL)	To delete the just previously recorded data from the target of grand totals (sub totals) and to input characters.

Designations and functions of keys			
Key (designation)	Description		
(Function)	To go into setting mode and to input characters.		
(Up arrow)	To select setting items backward.		
(Down arrow)	To select setting items forward.		
(Right arrow)	To select setting items and to move the cursor.		
ESC (Escape)	To cancel input values or setting values and to return to the previous screen.		
ENT REC (Record)	To record data and to enter setting values.		



For inputting characters to register codes and code tables, see "4-1-1.Code registration with the front panel keys" (page 53) and "4-1-3.Code table registration" (page 55).

1-3.Rear panel input terminal block

1-3-1. Input equivalent circuit

The signal is input in the circuit by short-circuiting and opening between each input terminal and COM terminal. Short-circuiting is performed by a contact (relay, switch, etc.) or non-contact (transistor, open collector output, etc.)



1

0000000

In using a transistor, FET, or SSR, be careful about withstand voltage, leakage current and saturated residual voltage.

- Withstand voltage: 30V or more
- Leakage current at OFF-time: 100 µ A or less
- Saturated residual voltage: 5V or less

The following shows a timing chart of the external input terminals on the rear panel.



1-4. Power cord attachment

For connection to the terminal block, use crimp-type terminals (M3) as shown in the illustration so as not to let the cable end spread out.

Connect + (plus) and - (minus) of the power supply to the red screw side and black screw side of the terminal block on the rear of the DS252 respectively. The input voltage is 24V DC \pm 15%.



Note/

Be aware that the voltage will be dropped depending on the wire thickness and length.

Also, never input AC power. A failure will be caused.

Be sure to ground the F.G. terminal.



Recommended power supply

• DIN rail mounting type	
IDEC PS5R-SC24	(Rated input: 100 to 240V AC)
• Panel embedded type	
ETA SVS24SA	(Rated input: 100 to 120V AC)
ETA SVM24SB	(Rated input: 200 to 240V AC)

1-5.Insertion and ejection of a CF card

[Insertion]

Insert a CF card as far as it will go paying attention to its orientation.



Pull out the eject button and fold it to the left side.



[Ejection]

Put back the folded eject button, push the eject button and eject the CF card.



Connection with indicators

SI/F two-wire serial interface	10
SI/F connection	11
Recording	12
About input channels	14
Recorded data input channels	
and beep sound	16

2-1.SI/F two-wire serial interface

The interface "SI/F" is equipped as a standard interface on the DS252. This interface is for connection with a UNIPULSE-manufactured digital indicator or loadcell indicator. SI/F connection with such indicators are explained in this chapter.

2-1-1. About the SI/F

UNIPULSE's unique SI/F is an interface to connect our indicators in F series and peripheral equipments, such as printers or external displays. Any SI/F-capable product can be easily connected and used without concern for the data contents and hardware specifications.

SI/F specifications

Connection	Two-wire, nonpolar		
Transmission distance	Parallel two-core cable: 30m Shielded cable: 300m		
Data transmitted	Measuring/weighing data, status information (comparison result, MD, zero alarm, etc.), error information, automatic recording command, etc.		
Signal	Signal level	Photo-coupler isolated current signal	
standards	Transmission system	Start/stop system	
	Transmission speed	600bps	
	Data bit	8bit	
	Start bit	1bit	
	Stop bit	1bit	
	Parity	ODD	

* In this manual, the automatic print command of the SI/F is expressed as the automatic recording command.

2-1-2. About the SI/F of the DS252

Two channels of SI/F (Ach and Bch) are equipped on the DS252. Pins 6-7 and 13-14 on the rear terminal block correspond to Ach and Bch respectively.

2-2.SI/F connection

Two channels of SI/F are equipped on the DS252. For connection, use parallel two-core or cabtyre cables. The SI/F is nonpolar.

1. Strip the covering of the wire to be connected 5 to 6mm.



- 2. Twist the tip to such an extent that it will not spread out.
- 3. Insert the attached screwdriver into the upper hole and lightly push it up.
- 4. Insert the wire into the lower hole so as not to let the tip spread out.



- 5. Pull out the screwdriver.
- 6. Lightly pull the wire to make sure that it is securely clamped.





The cross-sectional area of wires connectable to the (cage clamp type) terminal block is 0.2 to

 2.5mm^2 .

Do not attach a crimp-type terminal to the tip of wire(s) or finish it by soldering.

If you connect two or more wires, twist them together beforehand.

2-3.Recording

The DS252 performs recording when any of the following conditions are satisfied.

- 1. When the $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key is pressed (*)
- 2. When No. 2 [RECORD] and No. 1 [COM] on the terminal block are short-circuited (Ach) (*) When No. 9 [RECORD] and No. 8 [COM] on the terminal block are short-circuited (Bch) (*)
- 3. When an automatic recording command is sent from the SI/F
- 4. When a recording command is input to the RS-232C
- 5. At preset intervals for interval records (*)
- * In cases of 1, 2 and 5, where no recorded data is input, recording is not performed.

[Example] Recording the input data of SI/F Ach

1. Connect SI/F Ach on the rear panel terminal block with an indicator and turn on the power.



2. Upon normal receipt of data, the data from the indicator is displayed on the input value display screen.



- UMPULSE DS252 Paperless Printer The recorded count is increased. 00001 SIA The RECORD lamp is lighted. 20.5kg ERROF ENT REC key Δ ESC STAR ENT REC ∇ 6 0 8 WRIT
- 3. Press the $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key. (Recorded in the internal memory)

The RECORD lamp is lighted and the recorded count is increased each time the key is pressed.

4. Set a CF card into the main body and press the $\begin{bmatrix} 8 \\ & GT \end{bmatrix}$ key. (Saving on the CF card) The data having been recorded in the internal memory in 3. is saved on the CF card.



5. Since the confirmation screen is displayed, press the $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key for execution.



2-4. About input channels

The DS252 has two data input channels. To use both channels at the same time, select [06: BOTH (both record), [07: BOTH+DATE (both record with date/time)], or [08: BOTH FULL (both record with date/ time and code)] under "07: Record Every Format" (page 35).

The following table shows a list of data to be recorded when input.

The recorded data differs from recording commands.

If the recording command is:

 $\left(\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix} \right)$ key on the front panel of the main body

• Interval record

	Input data	Individual	record	Both recor	ď
		Ach	Bch	Ach	Bch
Without	SI/F Ach		×		×
OP	SI/F Bch	×		×	
	SI/F Ach + Bch				
With OP	SI/F Ach		×		×
	SI/F Bch	×		×	
	SI/F Ach + Bch				
	SI/F Ach + OP		×		×
	SI/F Bch + OP	OP		OP	
	SI/F Ach + Bch + OP				
	OP	OP	×	OP	×

* Input signals are recorded regardless of the setting of "07: Record Every Format".

If the recording command is:

- [REC] terminal on the rear panel of the main body
- · Automatic recording command from the SI/F
- Recording command from the RS-232C

Recording		Input data		record	Both recor	ď
command			Ach	Bch	Ach	Bch
cn						
Ach	Without	SI/F Ach		×		×
	OP	SI/F Bch	×	×	×	
		SI/F Ach + Bch		×		
	With OP	SI/F Ach		×		×
	SI/F Bch	×	×	×		
	SI/F Ach + Bch		×			
	SI/F Ach + OP		×		×	
		SI/F Bch + OP	OP	×	OP	
		SI/F Ach + Bch + OP		×		
		OP	OP	×	OP	×

Bch	Without	SI/F Ach	×	×		×
	OP	SI/F Bch	×		×	
		SI/F Ach + Bch	×			
	With OP	SI/F Ach	×	×		×
		SI/F Bch	×		×	
		SI/F Ach + Bch	×			
		SI/F Ach + OP	×	×		×
		SI/F Bch + OP	×		OP	
		SI/F Ach + Bch + OP	×			
		OP	×	×	OP	×

Meanings of expressions in the table

- : Data input to SI/F Ach is recorded.
- : Data input to SI/F Bch is recorded.
- OP: Data input to the option (BCD input or RS-232C) is recorded.
- **x** : Recording is not performed.
- Individual record:

The setting of "07: Record Every Format" is other than [both record]

- Both record: The setting of "07: Record Every Format" is [both record]
- Shaded area: The beep (buzzer) sounds. (Recording is performed on the channel with data input.)

2-5.Recorded data input channels and beep sound

2-5-1. In case of individual record

In case that the setting of input channels is individual record (the setting of "07: Record Every Format" is other than [both record]), if recording is performed with no recorded data input from Ach, Bch and the optional interface, the beep (buzzer) sounds and an error is recorded.

Also, if no data is input from the target channel with respect to the [REC] terminal on the rear panel of the main body or an automatic recording command from the SI/F, the beep (buzzer) sounds and an error is recorded.

2-5-2. In case of both record

In case that the setting of input channels is both record (the setting of "07: Record Every Format" is [both record]), if recording is performed with no recorded data from both SI/F Ach and the optional interface and with no recorded data input from SI/F Bch, the beep (buzzer) sounds and an error is recorded. However, recording is performed for the channel with input.

2-5-3. What is recorded when there is no valid data at record-every time

"-ERROR-" is recorded in the corresponding code column.



Optional input is recorded on Ach. With data from both the optional input and SI/F input, priority is given to the SI/F.

Basic operation of the DS252

Explanation of each setting

Screen configuration	18
Input value display	18
Records	23
Various settings	27

3-1. Screen configuration

The DS252 includes screens on which input (indicated values) from the SI/F or option is displayed and screens on which setting values can be confirmed and changed.

[Input value display]	SIA SUGAR 00000 100.00kg
[Setting value display]	00:FUNCTION SETTING

3-2.Input value display

Data received from the SI/F or values input from the option are displayed.

3-2-1. Changing the input value display

At power-on, the DS252 shows the input value display.

There are four types of input display, which can be changed by the $\langle \triangleright \rangle$ key.

(1) SI/F Ach data display



The data received on SI/F Ach is displayed on the second line.

The code (if registered) is displayed on the first line. The numerical value at the upper right represents the recorded count.

If there is no data received on SI/F Ach, [-----] is displayed at the indicated value display section.

The data received on SI/F Bch is displayed on the second line.

The code (if registered) is displayed on the first line. The numerical value at the upper right represents the recorded count.

If there is no data received on SI/F Bch, [-----] is displayed at the indicated value display section.

The above two types of input are automatically switched and displayed.

Set the switching time under "76 : Display Switching Time Setting" (page 70).

The data received on SI/F Ach and Bch are displayed simultaneously.

The selected input value display is held even if the power is turned off.

If there is no data input to SI/F Ach and an option is connected, the input data from the option is displayed on Ach.

Note/

If the data from the SI/F or option is not updated for one second or more, it is regarded as no data received and [-----] is displayed.

3-2-2. Contents of display

(1), (2) Each channel data display



Name	Description
Input ch	
SIA	SI/F Ach
SIB	SI/F Bch
BCD RS2	Displays the data of the option if no data is input to SI/F Ach and an option is set.
Code	Displays the preset code name.
Recorded count	Displays the recorded count on each channel (not by code).
Input value	Displays the data received from the SI/F or option. Displays the value set by Recorded Data Selection.
Unit	Displays the preset unit.

(3) Automatic display switching mode



The contents of , , and are the same as those of each channel data display.

Name	Description
Recorded count	Displays the total of the recorded count on Ach and Bch. In case of 10 records on each of Ach and Bch, "20" is displayed.

(4) Simultaneous display of Ach and Bch



Name	Description
, Input ch	Indicates Ach and Bch (fixed).
, Code	Displays the codes of Ach and Bch.
, Input data	Displays the data of Ach and Bch.

(5) Status display



The description of each error is displayed on the lower line.

U	Displayed when the upper limit of the range is exceeded.
L	Displayed when the lower limit of the range is exceeded.
R	Displayed when the over status signal is received.
E	Displayed when the setting of Error Input ON/OFF is ON and the Bch [ST] terminal is short-circuited with the [COM] terminal on the rear panel.
*	Displayed when data not to be added is input (following the unit).

(6) Interval recording display



When interval records are started, a rotating bar is displayed at the lower left corner.

The RECORD lamp is lighted at the time when recording is performed.

(7) Backup battery error display



It is necessary to replace the built-in battery for data backup. Contact our sales department.

3-2-3. Confirmation of recorded data

Up to 1000 pieces of recently recorded data can be confirmed.



3-3.Records

The DS252 records and accumulates received data in the internal memory by recording operation and writes it on a CF card by GT and file write operation.

3-3-1. Recording of input values

The DS252 saves the values input from the SI/F and optional interface once in the internal memory.

Therefore, it is not necessary to insert a CF card in the main body.

Recording into the internal memory is performed by any of the following operations.

When recording is performed, the numerical value at the upper right of the input display screen is incremented.

- Pressing the $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key on the front panel of the main body
- · Short-circuiting the [REC] terminal and [COM] terminal on the rear panel of the main body

- · Receiving an automatic recording command from the SI/F
- Receiving a recording command from the RS-232C
- At interval-record time



Without being updated, input data is internally held for one second. Input values are recorded at the point of the time when [REC] operation is performed.

Note /

The [REC] terminal on the rear panel of the main body and the automatic recording command from the SI/F function independently on Ach and Bch.

Other recording commands function on both Ach and Bch.

However, if [both record] is selected under "07: Record Every Format" (page 35), the [REC] terminal and automatic recording command function on both Ach and Bch.

3-3-2. Contents of input values recorded

Regarding "3-3-1.Recording of input values" (page23), the following data can be recorded in addition to input data.

- · Date of receipt of the recording command
- Time of receipt of the recording command
- Code
- Recorded count (by code)

For the setting of recording format, see "07: Record Every Format" (page 35).

3-3-3. Recording of sub totals

The DS252 can record the sub totals of data saved in "3-3-1.Recording of input values" (page23) as middle sub totals and section sub totals.

Middle sub totals and section sub totals

Middle sub totals: Values taken from the previous grand total to sub totals are recorded.



Section sub totals:..... Values taken between sub totals are recorded.



Sub totals are recorded by the following operations.

- Short-circuiting the [ST] terminal and [COM] terminal on the rear panel of the main body (on either Ach or Bch)
- · Receiving a sub total recording command from the RS-232C (option)

3-3-4. Batch total

The DS252 can count measurements of two or more codes as one batch and record the data by each batch.

To record batch totals, set "20 : Batch Total ON/OFF" (page 44) to ON and input a signal to the Bch [WRITE] terminal on the rear panel. Batch totals are recorded with the Bch [WRITE] terminal ON (short-circuited with the [COM] terminal).

Weighing of several small quantities is collectively recorded as one batch.


3-3-5. Writing on a CF card

Writing on a CF card is performed by any of the following operations. The file is named as operation day/hour/minute/second.CSV.

- Pressing the formation of the main body
 Pressing the formation of the main body
 Pressing the formation of the formation of the main body
 Short-circuiting the [WRITE] terminal and [COM] terminal on the rear panel of the main body (on either Ach or Bch)
 Short-circuiting the [GT] terminal and [COM] terminal on the rear panel of the main body (on either Ach or Bch)
 - If the internal memory is full Equal to [WRITE] operation
 If "31 : Maximum Record Count Setting" (page 49) is reached by at least one code Equal to [GT] operation



For the recording format, see "07: Record Every Format" (page 35).

Difference between [WRITER] operation and [GT] operation

[WRITE] operation:	The data having been recorded in the internal memory is written on the CF card.
	Data calculations are made continuously.
[GT] operation:	The data having been recorded in the internal memory is written on the CF card

and also statistical data is written on the CF card and the previous data is cleared.

Note

When the setting of "20 : Batch Total ON/OFF" (page 44) is ON, the Bch [WRITE] terminal serves as a batch total command.

3-4. Various settings

For the DS252, select each setting item, in which you can input or select a desired value.

Set necessary setting items from the following list of setting items.

List of setting items

No.	Setting item	Details of setting	Page
01	Date/time (DATE/TIME)	Current date and time	33
02	Recorded Data Selection Ach (DATA KIND)	00 : GROSS (gross weight) (initial value) 01 : NET (net weight) 02 : TARE (tare weight) 03 : INDICATE (indicated value)	33
03	Recorded Data Selection Bch (DATA KIND)	00 : GROSS (gross weight) (initial value) 01 : NET (net weight) 02 : TARE (tare weight) 03 : INDICATE (indicated value)	33
04	Unit Selection Ach (DATA UNIT)	See the "List of unit settings" (page 108). (The initial value is 02: kg.)	34
05	Unit Selection Bch (DATA UNIT)	See the "List of unit settings" (page 108). (The initial value is 02: kg.)	34
06	Record Every ON/OFF (DATA RECORD)	00 : OFF (invalid) 01 : ON (valid) (initial value)	35
07	Record Every Format (DATA FORMAT)	 00 : STANDARD (standard) (initial value) 01 : +TIME (with time) 02 : +CODE (with code) 03 : +TIME & CODE (with time and code) 04 : +DATE (with date/time) 05 : +DATE & CODE (with date/time and code) 06 : BOTH (both record) 07 : BOTH+DATE (both record with date/time) 08 : BOTH FULL (both record with date/time and code) 09 : THROUGH (through recording) 	35
08	Automatic Record ON/OFF (AUTO RECORD)	00 : OFF (invalid) 01 : ON (valid) (initial value)	38
09	Interval Record ON/OFF (INTERVAL REC)	00 : OFF (invalid) (initial value) 01 : START KEY 02 : EXTERNAL REC	38
10	Interval Seconds (INTERVAL TIME)	1 to 9999 sec (The initial value is 0003 sec.)	39
11	GT/ST Recording Format (GT/ST FORMAT)	00 : STANDARD (initial value) 01 : +RANK	39
12	Type of Sub Totals (ST MODE)	00 : MIDDLE SUB (middle sub total) (initial value) 01 : SECTION SUB (section sub total)	40
13	Target Value for Statistical Data Ach (TARGET VALUE)	\pm 0 to 99999 (The initial value is +00000.)	41
14	Target Range for Statistical Data Ach (TARGET RANGE)	5 to 99999 (The initial value is 99999.)	41

No.	Setting item	Details of setting	Page
15	Target Value for Statistical Data Bch (TARGET VALUE)	± 0 to 99999 (initial value : +00000.)	41
16	Target Range for Statistical Data Bch (TARGET RANGE)	5 to 99999 (initial value : 99999.)	41
17	Standard Deviation (STD MODE)	$\begin{array}{ccc} 00: & & \\ 01: & & \\ n-1 \end{array} $ (initial value)	42
18	Data Adding ON/OFF (DATA ADDING)	00 : OFF (data not added) 01 : ON (data added) (initial value)	43
19	Record Key ON/OFF (RECORD KEY)	00 : OFF (invalid) 01 : ON (valid) (initial value)	43
20	Batch Total ON/OFF (BATCH TOTAL)	00 : OFF (invalid) (initial value) 01 : ON (valid)	44
21	(Unassigned)		
22	Code Selection (CODE SOURCE)	00 : KEY (initial value) (Ach : keyboard, Bch : keyboard) 01 : OPTION (Ach : option, Bch : keyboard) 02 : KEY TABLE (Ach : key table, Bch : key table) 03 : OPTION TABLE (Ach : option table, Bch : key table)	45
23	Number of Code Digits (CODE SIZE)	0 to 6 digits (The initial value is 0.)	45
24	Registration of Code Table Ach (CODE TABLE)	Maximum number of codes registered: 100	46
25	Registration of Code Table Bch (CODE TABLE)	Maximum number of codes registered: 100	46
26	Code Sorting Type (SORT TYPE)	00 : NAME (code name) (initial value) 01 : TABLE No. (code table number)	47
27	File Writing Mode Setting (WRITE MODE)	00 : CLEAR (continued writing) (initial value) 01 : NON CLEAR (all data writing)	47
28	File Overwriting Mode Setting (OVERWRITE)	00 : OFF (file not overwritten) (initial value) 01 : ON (file overwritten)	48
29	Error Input ON/OFF Setting (ERROR INPUT)	00 : OFF (error input unavailable) (initial value) 01 : ON (error input available)	48
30	Option Table Ch (OPTION TABLE)	00 : ChA (initial value) 01 : ChA+ChB	49
31	Maximum Recorded Count Setting (MAX COUNT)	1 to 9999 (The initial value is 9999.)	49
32	Grand Total Timer (GT TIMER)	00 : OFF (initial value) 01 : ON 12 : 00	49
33	Both Recording Mode Setting (BOTH MODE)	00 : ChA (initial value) 01 : ChB	50

List of option setting items

No.	Setting item	Details of setting	Page
40	BCD Input Monitor (BCD INPUT)		82
41	BCD Decimal Point Position (DECIMAL POINT)	00 : *.*** 01 : **.*** 02 : ***.** 03 : ****.* 04 : ***** (initial value)	82
42	BCD Data Logic (DATA LOGIC)	00 : NEGATIVE (negative logic) (initial value) 01 : POSITIVE (positive logic)	83
43	BCD Minus Sign Logic (SIGN LOGIC)	00 : NEGATIVE (negative logic) (initial value) 01 : POSITIVE (positive logic)	83
44	BCD Over Logic (OVER LOGIC)	00 : NEGATIVE (negative logic) (initial value) 01 : POSITIVE (positive logic)	83
45	BCD Strobe Logic (STROBE LOGIC)	00 : NEGATIVE (negative logic) (initial value) 01 : POSITIVE (positive logic)	83
46	RS-232C Transmission Speed (RS232C BPS)	00 : 1200bps 01 : 2400bps 02 : 4800bps 03 : 9600bps (initial value) 04 : 19200bps 05 : 38400bps	87
47	RS-232C Parity Bit (RS232C Parity)	00 : EVEN 01 : ODD 02 : NONE (initial value)	87
48	RS-232C Data/Stop Bit (RS232C DATA)	00 : 7BIT 1STOP 01 : 7BIT 2STOP 02 : 8BIT 1STOP (initial value) 03 : 8BIT 2STOP	87
49	RS-232C Terminator (RS232C TERM)	00 : CR 01 : CR+LF (initial value)	88
50	RS-232C Answer Mode (RS232C ANSWER)	00 : ECHO (echo back mode) 01 : RESULT (result answer mode) (initial value)	88

List of CF card setting items

No.	Setting item	Details of setting	Page
60	CF Card Remaining Check (CARD LIST)		59
61	Loading of Code Table Ach (CODE A LOAD)		60
62	Loading of Code Table Bch (CODE B LOAD)		60
63	Saving of Code Table Ach (CODE A SAVE)		61
64	Saving of Code Table Bch (CODE B SAVE)		61
65	Loading of Setting Value (SETTING LOAD)		61
66	Saving of Setting Value (SETTING SAVE)		62
67	CF Card Format (CARD FORMAT)		62

List of maintenance mode setting items

No.	Setting item	Details of setting	Page
70	Version Display (VERSION)		68
71	Self Test (SELF TEST)		68
72	Beep Sound ON/OFF (BEEP SOUND)	00 : OFF (sound inaudible) 01 : ON (sound audible) (initial value)	69
73	LCD Backlight Setting (BACKLIGHT)	00 : OFF (invalid) 01 : ON (valid) (initial value)	69
74	LCD Backlight Timeout Setting (LCD TIMEOUT)	0000 to 9999 sec (The initial value is 0000 sec: always ON.)	69
75	Key Input Timeout Setting (KEY TIMEOUT)	0000 to 9999 sec (The initial value is 0030 sec.)	70
76	Display Switching Time Setting (CH SWAP TIME)	0001 to 9999 sec (The initial value is 0001 sec.)	70
77	Data Clear (DATA CLEAR)		70
78	Test Mode (TEST MODE)		71

3-4-1. Basic setting operation

The following shows basic operational procedures for actual setting the DS252.



By inputting a setting No. on Setting value display, you can go directly to Detailed setting display.
In this example, press the $\begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ F \end{bmatrix}$ $\begin{bmatrix} 7 \\ ST \end{bmatrix}$ $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key on the screen of . Setting Nos. correspond to the leftmost numbers on the "List of setting items" (page 27).

To return to the previous display in each display state, use the key.

3-4-2. Explanation of each setting

The details of each setting are explained below. To go to each setting screen, see "3-4-1.Basic setting operation" (page31).

01 : Date/Time

Change the date and time.

The date and time of the DS252 are factory-adjusted.

Setting name	01 : Date/Time (DATE/TIME)
Display	01:DATE/TIME 05/10/18 12:00
Precautions	• Input year/month/day/hour/minute.
	• For year, input the last two digits.
	• Confirm your entry with the $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key so that the 'second' digits will become 00.

02, 03: Recorded Data Selection Ach, Bch

Select the type of recorded data on each channel.

There are four types of selectable data.

Setting name	02 : Recorded Date Selection Ach (DATA KIND) 03 : Recorded Date Selection Bch (DATA KIND)
Selectable items	00 : GROSS (gross weight) (initial value) 01 : NET (net weight) 02 : TARE (tare weight) 03 : INDICATE (indicated value)
Display	02:DATA KIND ChA=00:GROSS 03:DATA KIND ChB=00:GROSS
Reference	For recording indicated values of a loadcell indicator or digital indicator, normally set the DS252 to [03. Indicated value]. Select net weight, gross weight, or tare weight only when specifically recording it.
Precautions	The type of recorded data selected here is valid only when data is recorded through the SI/F. When data is recorded through BCD input or the RS-232C interface, the input data is recorded regardless of the type selected here.

SI/F and indicators

Loadcell indicator From the loadcell indicator connected through the SI/F, indicated value/ net weight/gross weight/tare weight data, etc. are sent at intervals of approx. 0.3 sec regardless of the value displayed each time. On the DS252 side, recorded data can be selected out of them so that recording can be performed even if the data is not displayed on the indicator.



Digital indicator From the digital indicator connected through the SI/F, the data of the value displayed each time is sent at intervals of approx. 0.3 sec.



04, 05: Unit Selection Ach, Bch

Select the unit of recorded data on each channel.

55 types of units are available.

Setting name	04: Unit Selection Ach (DATA UNIT) 05: Unit Selection Bch (DATA UNIT)
Selectable items	See the "List of unit settings" (page 108).
Initial value	02 : kg
Display	04:DATA UNIT ChA=02:kg 05:DATA UNIT ChB=02:kg

06 : Record Every ON/OFF

Set whether or not to recorded data individually by recording operation.

Setting name	06: Record Every ON/OFF (DATA RECORD)
Selectable items	00 : OFF (invalid) 01 : ON (valid) (initial value)
Display	06:DATA RECORD 01:ON
Reference • If this is set to ON (valid), input data is recorded in the internal memorrecording operation.	
	• If this is set to OFF (invalid), data is not recorded individually by recording operation, however, sub totals and grand totals are simply calculated.

07: Record Every Format

Select the format of data to be recorded by recording operation.

10 types of recording formats are available.

For each recording format, see "6-2-2.Recording of input data" (page94).

Setting name	07: Record Every Format (DATA FORMAT)
Selectable items	 00 : STANDARD (standard) (initial value) 01 : +TIME (with time) 02 : +CODE (with code) 03 : +TIME & CODE (with time and code) 04 : +DATE (with date/time) 05 : +DATE & CODE (with date/time and code) 06 : BOTH (both record) 07 : BOTH+DATE (both record with date/time) 08 : BOTH FULL (both record with date/time and code) 09 : THROUGH (through recording)
Display	07:DATA FORMAT 00:STANDARD
Reference	 If the same unit is applied on Ach and Bch, the sum of both channels is recorded after recording the grand totals of the respective channels. It will not be recorded if different units are applied. If this is set to STANDARD, the recorded count, input value and unit are recorded. If this is set to BOTH, recording is performed on Ach and Bch when the [REC] terminal turns ON regardless of the Ach/Bch setting on the rear panel. If this is set to THROUGH, the data received from the RS-232C is recorded as it is.
Precautions	 If THROUGH (through recording) is selected, all other recording operations become invalid. GT and ST operations are also invalid. CF writing operation is valid.

About through recording

To start through recording, set Record Every Format to THROUGH and then perform start operation.

Through recording start operation

1. Set "07: Record Every Format" (page 35) to "09: THROUGH (through recording)".



The data received from the RS-232C is recorded.

5. To interrupt the through recording and refuse the data from the RS-232C, press the $\begin{bmatrix} 5 \\ STOP \end{bmatrix}$

key on the input value display screen in Step 2 to enter the through recording stop confirmation screen.



7. To resume the through recording, perform the operations in Steps 3 and 4.

08 : Automatic Record ON/OFF

An automatic recording command can be sent from the SI/F or RS-232C to the DS252 to perform automatic recording. Select whether this automatic recording is on or off.

Setting name	08 : Automatic Record ON/OFF (AUTO RECORD)
Selectable items	00 : OFF (invalid) 01 : ON (valid) (initial value)
Display	08:AUTO RECORD 01:ON
Reference	•If this is set to ON (valid), data is recorded when a recording command is received from the SI/F or RS-232C. For the recording command from the SI/F, see the instruction manual of each indicator and for the recording command from the RS-232C, see "5-3.RS-232C interface" (page84).
	• If this is set to OFF (invalid), recording is not performed by the recording command from the SI/F or RS-232C.
Precautions	 Regardless of this setting, recording is always performed in the following conditions: When the ENT REC key is pressed When the [REC] terminal on the rear panel terminal block is ON (short-circuited with the [COM] terminal) Since no automatic recording command can be given by BCD input, for recording data from BCD input, it is perform operation on the front panel or
	input a REC signal from the rear terminal block.

09 : Interval Record ON/OFF

Select whether or not to perform recording automatically at fixed intervals.

Setting name	09 : Interval Record ON/OFF (INTERVAL REC)
Selectable items	00 : OFF (invalid) (initial value) 01 : START KEY 02 : EXTERNAL REC
Display	09:INTERVAL REC 00:OFF
Reference	• If the setting is other than OFF (invalid), data is recorded at the intervals of the time specified in "10: Interval Seconds" (page 39).
	Start and stop in case that START KEY is selected
	Start of recording 4 START ENT REC Key
	Stop of recording 5
	Start and stop in case that EXTERNAL REC is selected Recording is performed at the specified intervals as long as the [Ach REC] terminal on the rear panel is ON.
	• If this is set to OFF (invalid), interval recording is not performed.
	• During interval record, a rotating bar is displayed at the lower left of the input value display screen.
Precautions	During interval record, other recording operations are invalid.

Timing of interval record

At the setting of START KEY



At the setting of EXTERNAL REC



10: Interval Seconds

Set the interval time for interval records in seconds.

Setting name	10 : Interval Seconds (INTERVAL TIME)
Setting range	1 to 9999 sec
Initial value	0003 sec
Display	10:INTERVAL TIME 0003

11 : GT/ST Recording Format

Select the format of grand total/sub total data to be recorded by recording operation.

Setting name	11 : GT/ST Recording Format (GT/ST FORMAT)
Selectable items	00 : STANDARD (initial value)
	01.+KAINK
Display	11:GT/ST FORMAT 00:STANDARD
Reference	 If this is set to STANDARD, the following data is recorded. (See"6-2-1.Data labels" (page93)). TOTAL, STD, AVE, MIN, MAX, MAX - MIN, ERROR, OVER, LOWER, UPPER
	• If this is set to +RANK, frequency distribution (See "6-2-3.Recording of ST (sub total) / GT (grand total)" (page95) is added to STANDARD.

12 : Type of Sub Totals

Select the type of sub totals.

There are two types of sub totals: middle sub totals and section sub totals.

Setting name	12 : Type of Sub Totals (ST MODE)
Selectable items	00 : MIDDLE SUB (middle sub total) (initial value) 01 : SECTION SUB (section sub total)
Display	12:ST MODE 00:MIDDLE SUB

Middle sub totals and section sub totals

Middle sub totals:.......... Values taken from the previous grand total to sub totals are recorded.



Section sub totals: Values taken between sub totals are recorded.



13, 15 : Target Value for Statistical Data Ach, Bch 14, 16 : Target Range for Statistical Data Ach, Bch

Set the target value and range, a width from the target value, required for calculating statistical data.

Setting name	13, 15 : Target Value for Statistical Data Ach, Bch (TARGET VALUE) 14, 16 : Target Range for Statistical Data Ach, Bch (TARGET RANGE)
Setting range	Target value : ± 0 to 999999 (The initial value is +00000.) Target range : 5 to 999999 (The initial value is 999999.)
Display	13:TARGET VALUE ChA= 00000 15:TARGET VALUE ChB= 00000 14:TARGET RANGE ChA=99999 16:TARGET RANGE ChB=99999
Reference	 For setting a target value, change the sign with the down arrow key. Set a value without a decimal point. Example) 100.0 1000 The range between the upper limit and lower limit is divided into ten equal parts to generate ranks for frequency distribution. Rank data in lower order than the indicated value is discarded. If the data exceeds the upper limit or lower limit at record-every time, a range over symbol is recorded in the corresponding STATE column. Data > (upper limit) U Data < (lower limit) L The number of pieces of data exceeding the upper limit or lower limit is counted as UPPER or LOWER, respectively, which will be recorded at ST/GT-time.
Precautions	If the target value or range is changed in recording, the data of each rank may differ from the recorded data because the frequency distribution data is counted in each rank.

Example of setting <Setting of Target Value: 100, Range: 20>



17: Standard Deviation

Select a calculating formula the standard deviation.

There are two types of calculating formula.

Setting name	17 : Standard Deviation (STD MODE)
Selectable items	00 : _n (initial value)
	01: _{n-1}
Display	17:STD MODE 00: n

Details of setting

n..... All the data in a group is used to obtain the standard deviation of the group.



n-1..... Several pieces of sample data out of a group are used to estimate the standard deviation of the whole group.



Caution for selection

By n-1, part of the entire recorded data is extracted as samples and the standard deviation is calculated from the data of those samples alone. Therefore, if it is used when the amount of data is small, the reliability of the value will become low.

18 : Data Adding ON/OFF

Select whether or not the recorded data is targeted at grand totals/sub totals.

Setting name	18 : Data Adding ON/OFF (DATA ADDING)
Selectable items	00 : OFF (data not added) 01 : ON (data added) (initial value)
Display	18:DATA ADDING 01:ON
Reference	• If this is set to ON (data added), the recorded data is targeted at grand totals/sub totals.
	• If this is set to OFF (data not added), the recorded data is excluded from the target of grand totals/sub totals. An asterisk (*) follows the data (unit) recorded.
Precautions	If OFF (data not added) is selected, recording is not performed regardless of the setting of "06 : Record Every ON/OFF" (page 35).

19 : Record Key ON/OFF

Select whether the $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key on the front panel is valid or invalid.

Setting name	19 : Record Key ON/OFF (RECORD KEY)
Selectable items	00 : OFF (invalid) 01 : ON (valid) (initial value)
Display	19:RECORD KEY 01:ON
Reference	 If this is set to OFF (invalid), recording is not performed with the <i>ENT</i> REC key on the front panel. Set to OFF not to record by careless operation in equipment automation etc.
Precautions	This setting has no relationship to the [REC] terminal on the rear panel and the recording command from the SI/F or RS-232C.

20 : Batch Total ON/OFF

Set whether or not to record batch totals.

Setting name	20 : Batch Total ON/OFF (BATCH TOTAL)
Selectable items	00 : OFF (invalid) (initial value) 01 : ON (valid)
Display	20:BATCH TOTAL 00:OFF
Reference	• To record batch totals, use the [Bch WRITE] terminal on the rear panel. Batch totals are recorded by short-circuiting the [WRITE] terminal and [COM] terminal.
	• Several weighing counts are collectively recorded as one batch. For more details, see "3-3-4.Batch total" (page25).
Precautions	•The [Bch WRITE] terminal on the rear panel, which is used for batch total control, cannot be used for recording on a CF card.
	• To perform GT operation at Batch-Total-ON time, be sure to record the batch total just before the GT operation.
	(As the grand total data by GT operation, the sum of batch totals is recorded on the GT CH-A (B) line and the sum of individual data codes is recorded on the GT TOTAL line. (See page 95.)
	Completed batch totals are summed up independently. Since the data of individual codes is summed up regardless of completion of batch totals, if GT operation is performed without a batch total, the sum of batch totals and the sum of individual codes will not match.)

21 : (Unassigned)

22 : Code Selection

Select the method of code selection.

Setting name	22 : Code Selection (CODE SOURCE)
Selectable items	00 : KEY (initial value)(Ach: Keyboard, Bch: Keyboard)01 : OPTION(Ach: Option, Bch: Keyboard)02 : KEY TABLE(Ach: Key table, Bch: Key table)03 : OPTION TABLE(Ach: Option table, Bch: Key table)
Display	22:CODE SOURCE 00:KEY
Reference	• Keyboard For setting a code, input the code name with the front panel keys.
	• Option For setting a code, input the code name from the RS-232C interface or BCD input (option).
	• Key table For setting a code, input the code table number corresponding to the pre- registered code name with the front panel keys.
	• Option table For setting a code, send the code table number from the RS-232C interface or BCD input (option).
Precautions	• If OPTION or OPTION TABLE is selected with no option board set to the main body, the following will result:
	OPTIONKeyboard settingOPTION TABLEKey table
	• If you set this to "00: KEY" or "01: OPTION," set "26 : Code Sorting Type" (page 47) to "00: NAME".

23 : Number of Code Digits

Specify the number of digits for code sorting.

Setting name	23 : Number of Code Digits (CODE SIZE)
Setting range	0 to 6 digits
Initial value	0
Display	23:CODE SIZE 06:6
Reference	Normally, up to 6 digits can be used for codes. But by setting the number of code digits, calculations can also be made as codes having different heads are sorted by the preset number of digits from the last. (See the following example.) If it is set to 0, sorting is performed by input code.
Precautions	In case of using code tables, set the number of code digits to 2 digits or 1 digit. If it is set to 3 digits or more, sorting cannot be performed normally.



24, 25 : Registration of Code Table Ach, Bch

Register code tables.

Register code table numbers and corresponding code names.

Setting name	24, 25 : Registration of Code Table Ach, Bch (CODE TABLE)		
Maximum number of codes registered	Up to 100 on each channel		
Display	24:CODE TABLE ChA=00:SUGAR 25:CODE TABLE ChB= <u>00:SALT</u> Table number Code name		
Reference	Change the code number with the \triangleright key.		
Precautions	 There are two ways to register code tables: to input with the front panel keys and to load a code table file having been created on a CF card. For more details, see"4-1 Sorting by code and code table" (page 52) 		

26 : Code Sorting Type

Select the method of sorting codes.

Setting name	26 : Code Sorting Type (SORT TYPE)	
Selectable items	00 : NAME (code name) (initial value) 01 : TABLE No. (code table number)	
Display	26:SORT TYPE 00:NAME	
Reference	Specify whether data should be sorted by code name or by code table number.	

27 : File Writing Mode Setting

Set the operation in writing data on a CF card.

Setting name	27 : File Writing Mode Setting (WRITE MODE)	
Selectable items	00 : CLEAR (continuous writing) (initial value) 01 : NON CLEAR (all data writing)	
Display	27:WRITE MODE 00:CLEAR	
Reference	• If this is set to CLEAR (continuous writing): By WRITE operation, data from WRITE operation to WRITE operation is written on the CF card.	
 If this is set to NON CLEAR (all data writing): By WRITE operation, data from GT operation to WRITE operation is w the CF card. 		
Precautions	If this is set to CLEAR (continuous writing), the previous data is cleared by WRITE operation (data accumulation will be continued); therefore, the data before the previous WRITE operation will not be written on the CF card by the next WRITE operation or GT operation.	

28 : File Overwriting Mode Setting

Set the operation to be performed when a CF card is full of data.

Setting name	28 : File Overwriting Mode Setting (OVERWRITE)	
Selectable items	00 : OFF (not overwritten) (initial value) 01 : ON (overwritten)	
Display	28:OVERWRITE 00:OFF	
Reference	 If this is set to OFF (not overwritten): When the inserted CF card does not have enough free space or the number of files is too large, writing operation to the CF card is not performed. Reinsert a CF card with enough free space for recording. Recording into the internal memory will be continued. If this is set to ON (overwritten): The oldest file(s) on the CF card is deleted as required for writing to record the latest data. 	
Precautions	• If this is set to OFF (not overwritten), write operation into the internal memory will be continued, but if the internal memory has also become full, data accumulation will be simply made result.	
	• If this is set to ON (overwritten), old file(s) will automatically be deleted. Therefore, save important data on a PC etc. as soon as possible.	

29 : Error Input ON/OFF Setting

Set whether or not to validate input data by an external terminal.

Setting name	29 : Error Input ON/OFF Setting (ERROR INPUT)	
Selectable items	00 : OFF (error input available) (initial value)	
	01 : ON (error input unavailable)	
Display	29:ERROR INPUT 00:OFF	
Reference	 If this is set to ON (error input available): The SI/F Bch ST signal input on the rear panel terminal block is used as an error input terminal. Data is invalid as long as this terminal is short-circuited with the [COM] terminal and is not reflected in the grand total data. ('E' is added in the STATE column.) 	
	• If this is set to OFF (error input unavailable) The SI/F Bch ST signal on the rear panel terminal block functions to process sub totals (ST).	

30 : Option Table Ch

Setting name	30 : Option Table Ch (OPTION TABLE)		
Selectable items	00 : ChA (initial value)		
	01 : ChA+ChB		
Display	30:OPTION TABLE		
	00:ChA		
Reference	01 : About the setting of "01: ChA+ChB"		
	If this setting is selected with "22 : Code Selection" (page 45) set to OPTION		
	TABLE, a code name can be set on both Ach and Bch by using the option-input code table number.		
	The code name corresponding to the input code table number is called respective code tables and set on Ach and Bch at the same time.		
Precautions	No code name can be called out of the code tables on Bch alone.		

Select the operation of setting codes by option.

31 : Maximum Recorded Count Setting

Set the count to perform GT operation.

Setting name	31 : Maximum Recorded Count Setting (MAX COUNT)	
Setting range	1 to 9999 (The initial value is 9999.)	
Display	31:MAX COUNT 9999	
Reference	GT operation is performed when any of the codes in use reaches the maximum recorded count set here.	

32 : Grand Total Timer

Set the grand total timer.

Setting name	32 : Grand Total Timer (GT TIMER)	
Selectable items	00 : OFF (initial value)	
	01 : ON 12 : 00	
Display	32:GT TIMER 00:OFF	
Reference	• By this function, GT operation is performed and a file is created at the preset time every day.	
	• The GT operation time can be input by selecting ON and using the $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key.	
	Input the time and set the function with the $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key.	
	(The initial setting is 12:00.)	
	• GT operation by other factors remains valid.	

33 : Both Recording Mode Setting

Select the channel accepting a recording command in both recording mode.

Setting name	33 : Both Recording Mode Setting (BOTH MODE)	
Selectable items	00 : ChA (initial value)	
	01 : ChB	
Display	33:BOTH MODE 00:ChA	
Reference	• This setting relates to recording commands from the SI/F and RS-232C. Select the channel accepting a recording command when [both record] is selected under "07: Record Every Format" (page 35). At this time, recording is not performed even if a recording command is given to the unselected channel.	
	• The recording command from the RS-232C is dealt with as an input to Ach.	
• If [both record] is not selected under "07: Record Every Format" (rechannels will accept a recording command.		



Various functions of the DS252

Sorting by code and code table	52
CF card	57
Maintenance mode	67
Over records	71
Deletion records	72
Date/time records	73
Initialization	73

4-1.Sorting by code and code table

The DS252 can calculate sub totals and grand totals etc. on each code that can be assigned to each piece of recorded data.

Up to 32 codes can be registered on each channel.

Maximum number of codes registered	32 codes on each channel	
Method of registration	 Input with the front panel keys on the main body Registration is waited for by pressing the key (for Ach) or the B key (for Bch). Input from the RS-232C (See page 84.) 	
Input format	###### (6 digits at the maximum)	
Usable characters	Numerical, alphabetical and katakana characters and symbols (-, *, /, space)	
Method of calling a code	Front panel keys, RS-232C, BCD input	



4-1-1. Code registration with the front panel keys

Input a code by using the numerical keys from 1 to 0 F, A, V and be pressed until a desired characters are allocated for each numerical key, the key should be pressed until a desired character appears (This collection of keys is called a group.). For the list of characters allocated for each group, see the appendix "Character input table" (page 109).
In case of inputting characters in the same group continuously, press the be key once to move the cursor forward by one character.

- In case of inputting characters in different groups, input continuously. There is no need to press the key.
- In case of deleting one character, press the \triangle key.

The following shows basic operational procedures for actually setting the DS252. Then, "BUTTER" will be registered as a code on Ach for example.



2. Input the code as follows:

		/Cursor position
В	Press $\begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ A \end{bmatrix}$ 3 times.	в
U	Press $\begin{bmatrix} 8 \\ & \\ & \\ & \end{bmatrix}$ 2 times.	BU
T	Press $\begin{bmatrix} 7 \\ st \end{bmatrix}$ 4 times.	BUT
		, The cursor moves.
	After pressing >> once,	BUT
Т	Press $\begin{bmatrix} 7 \\ st \end{bmatrix}$ 4 times.	BUTT
Ε	Press $\begin{bmatrix} 2 \\ B \end{bmatrix}$ 4 times.	BUTTE
R	Press $\begin{bmatrix} 7 \\ st \end{bmatrix}$ 2 times.	BUTTER
After completion of input, confirm your entry with the $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key.		

3. Upon completion of registration, the input value display screen is restored.



4-1-2. Code tables- difference from codes-

If you have registered code names corresponding to two-digit numbers (code table numbers) between 00 and 99 (ditto for Bch) in advance, you can call the registered codes by specifying each code table number for recording without the need to input a code name each time you change the weighing target. Code tables can be set on each channel (A, B). If you do not use code tables, you have to input and call code names with the front panel keys or from the option.



Maximum number of codes registered	100 codes on each channel	
Method of registration	Register in the setting mode "24, 25 : Registration of Code Table Ach, Bch" (page 46).	
Input format	Code table number:## (00 to 99 to the last two digits)Code name:###### (6 digits at the maximum)	
Usable characters	Numerical, alphabetical and katakana characters and symbols (-, *, /, space)	
Method of calling a code	Front panel keys, RS-232C, BCD input	

4-1-3. Code table registration

The operation of code table registration is nearly the same as that of code registration described above except for inputting a code table number corresponding to each code name.

The following shows basic operational procedures for actually setting the DS252. Then, "01" and "SUGAR" will be registered as a code table number and code respectively on Ach for example.





- * Input the code name referring to "4-1-1.Code registration with the front panel keys" (page 53).
- 5. After inputting the code name, confirm your entry with the $\int_{\text{REC}}^{\text{ENT}} |\text{key.}\rangle$



6. To continue registration, repeat Steps 3 to 5.

```
7. Exit with the \begin{bmatrix} ESC \end{bmatrix} key.
```

4-1-4. How to call a code/code table

To call a code, input the code name and to call a code table, input the code table number. Depending on the interface, there are some restrictions in calling such a code/code table.

Under "22 : Code Selection" (page 45), select whether to call a code or code table and whether to call it from the front panel keys or optional interface.

Selecting with the front panel keys

Pressing the $\begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ A \end{bmatrix}$ key ($\begin{bmatrix} 2 \\ B \end{bmatrix}$ key for Bch) on the input value display brings about a code selection state. For a code, input the code name directly. For a code table, input the code table number.

Selecting from the option

See the explanation of each option.



List of methods of code name/code table selection

	Code		Code table	
	Ach	Bch	Ach	Bch
Front panel keys				
BCD input	(Note1)	×		(Note2)
RS-232C		×		(Note2)

(Note1) Codes that can be selected through the BCD input are only numbers, spaces and hyphens.

(Note2) If "30 : Option Table Ch" (page 49) set to ChA+ChB, a code name can be set on both Ach and Bch by using the option-input code table number.

No code name can be called out of the code tables on Bch alone.

	Code table	
	Ach	Bch
Front panel keys		
BCD input	×	×
RS-232C	×	×

List of code table registration methods

4-2.CF card

For the DS252, a CF card is adopted as a recording medium. It not only can record the data but also can save and call the setting values and codes.

4-2-1. How to operate a CF card

Operate the CF card by selecting CARD on the setting value display.



Executing		
67:CARD FORMAT FORMATTING		
ł		
Execution completed		
67:CARD FORMAT DONE		
ENT REC		
Return to the processing screen		
67:CARD FORMAT EXECUTE [ENT]		



By inputting a setting No. on Setting value display, you can go directly to detailed setting display.

In this example, press the $\begin{bmatrix} 6 \\ WRITE \end{bmatrix}$ $\begin{bmatrix} 7 \\ ST \end{bmatrix}$ $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key on the screen of \cdot .

Setting Nos. correspond to the leftmost numbers on the "List of CF card setting items" (page 30).

ESC key.

To return to the previous display in each display state, use the \diagdown

4-2-2. Explanation of each process

60 : CF Card Remaining Check

Check the remaining volume of a CF card.

Setting name	60 : CF Card Remaining Check (CARD LIST)		
Display	60:CARD LIST EXECUTE [ENT]		
	60:CARD REMAIN 00: 95.40%	% display	
	60:CARD REMAIN 01: 127.67MB	Free space display	
	60:CARD FILE CNT 02: 10/512	File count display	
	60:CARD DIR 000 02122510.CSV	File name display	
	60:CARD REMAIN 00: NO DATA	Error display	
Reference	• Execute with the ENT REC key.		
	• The remaining volume (% and free space (MB)) of a CF card and the file count and name can be checked.		
	Switch the display with the arrow keys (\frown , \Box , \bigtriangledown).		
	• Exit the remaining check display with the \underbrace{ESC} key.		
Precautions	Even if the CF card has enough free space, no more files can be created when the file count has reached 512.		

61, 62 : Loading of Code Table (Ach, Bch)

Load the code table files having been saved on a CF card.

Setting name	61, 62 : Loading of Code Table Ach, Bch (CODE A(B) LOAD)		
Display	61:CODE A LOAD EXECUTE [ENT]	Ach	
	62:CODE B LOAD EXECUTE [ENT]	Bch	
	61:CODE A LOAD READING	Loading	
	61:CODE A LOAD DONE	Loading completed	
	61:CODE A LOAD ERROR [1]	Error display	
Reference	• Execute with the $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key.		
	• Loading file names are: Ach : DS_TBL_A.TXT Bch : DS_TBL_B.TXT		
	• If there is any invalid description, the data before that line is loaded and the loading is stopped at the invalid line with an error displayed.		
	• For the file contents, see the "Code table files" (page 66).		
Precautions	By performing this operation, the code tables currently set to the DS252 are overwritten. Perform the processing after confirming the setting files.		

63, 64 : Saving of Code Table (Ach, Bch)

Save the currently set code tables on a CF card.

Setting name	63, 64 : Saving of Code Table Ach, Bch (CODE A(B) SAVE)		
Display	63:CODE A SAVE EXECUTE [ENT]	Ach	
	64:CODE B SAVE EXECUTE [ENT]	Bch	
	63:CODE A SAVE WRITING	Saving	
	63:CODE A SAVE DONE	Saving completed	
	63:CODE A SAVE ERROR [1]	Error display	
Reference	• Execute with the ENT REC key.		
	• Saving file names are: Ac Bc	ch : DS_TBL_A.TXT ch : DS_TBL_B.TXT	
	• If the above file names exist on the CF card, they are saved as overwritten.		
	• For the file contents, see the "Code table files" (page 66).		
Precautions	If setting files exist on the CF card, execute this after saving necessary files on a PC etc. to overwrite the files.		

65 : Loading of Setting Value

Load the setting value file having been saved on a CF card.

Setting name	65: Loading of Setting Value (SETTING LOAD)		
Display	65:SETTING LOAD EXECUTE [ENT]		
	65:SETTING LOAD READING	Loading	
	65:SETTING LOAD DONE	Loading completed	
	65:SETTING LOAD ERROR [1]	Error display	
Reference	• Execute with the $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key.		
	 Loading file name is: DS252SET.TXT If there is any invalid description, the data before that line is loaded and the loading is stopped at the invalid line with an error displayed. For the file contents, see the "Setting file" (page 64). 		
Precautions	By performing this operation, the values currently set to the DS252 are overwritten. Perform the processing after confirming the setting file.		
66 : Saving of Setting Value

Save the currently setting values on a CF card.

Setting name	66 : Saving of Setting	Value (SET	TING SAVE)
Display	66:SETTING EXECUTE	SAVE [ENT]	
	66:SETTING WRITING	SAVE	Saving
	66:SETTING DONE	SAVE	Saving completed
	66:SETTING ERROR [1]	SAVE	Error display
Reference	• Execute with the	REC key.	
	• Saving file name is:	DS	S252SET.TXT
	• If the above file name	e exists on	the CF card, it is saved as overwritten.
	• For the file contents,	see the "Se	tting file" (page 64).
Precautions	If setting file exists on to overwrite the file.	the CF card	l, execute this after saving file on a PC etc.

67 : CF Card Format

Format a CF card.

Setting name	67 : CF Card format (CARD FORMAT)	
Display	67:CARD FORMAT EXECUTE [ENT]	
	67:CARD FORMAT FORMATTING	Formatting
	67:CARD FORMAT DONE	Formatting completed
	67:CARD FORMAT ERROR [1]	Error display
Reference	Execute with the $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key.	
Precautions	By formatting, all files on the CF card are deleted.	

4-2-3. About the error display

If any error that no CF card is set in the main body occurs, the error is displayed on the lower line of the display. Since the error is numerically described, check the following together.

CARD ERROR [1]	No CF card is set in the main body.
CARD ERROR [2]	The type of CF card is incorrect.
CARD ERROR [3]	The CF card is not formatted.
CARD ERROR [11]	The CF card is full.
CARD ERROR [20]	The number of files on the CF card is too large.
CARD ERROR [22]	No file exists.
CARD ERROR [24]	The same file name exists.

If any other error is displayed, the CF card may be abnormal.

Check the CF card on a PC etc.

4-2-4. Setting file

With the DS252, each setting can be saved on a CF card or loaded out of it to the main body. Since the file contents are saved in text format, they can be confirmed on a PC etc.

Setting file name: DS252SET.TXT

Setting values are saved with this file name. If this file name already exists on the CF card, the file will be overwritten. Setting values are loaded out of the CF card by searching for this file name.

File format

In the setting file, each setting item is described on a line-by-line basis.

The first 2 digits of each line show the unique value allocated for the setting item and the commadelimited second field shows the value set to the setting item. If the same setting item doubly exists in the file, the lower-order line will become valid.



List of setting values

Setting item	Setting value	Reference comment	Description
02,	0,	DATA KIND A	Recorded Data Selection Ach
03,	0,	DATA KIND B	Recorded Data Selection Bch
04,	2,	UNIT A	Unit Selection Ach
05,	2,	UNIT B	Unit Selection Bch
06,	1,	EVERY RECORD	Record Every ON/OFF
07,	0,	RECORDING FORMAT	Record Every Format
08,	1,	AUTO RECORD	Automatic Record ON/OFF
09,	1,	INTERVAL MODE	Interval Record ON/OFF
10,	3,	INTERVAL TIME	Interval Seconds
11 ,	0,	GT/ST FORMAT	GT/ST Recording Format
12,	Ο,	ST MODE	Type of Sub Totals
13,	0,	TARGET A	Target Value for Statistical Data Ach
15,	0,	TARGET B	Target Value for Statistical Data Bch
14,	99999 ,	RANGE A	Target Range for Statistical Data Ach
16,	99999 ,	RANGE B	Target Range for Statistical Data Bch
17,	0,	STD MODE	Standard Deviation
18,	1,	ADD DATA MODE	Data Adding ON/OFF

Setting item	Setting value	Reference comment	Description
19,	1,	RECORD KEY	Record Key ON/OFF
20,	0,	BATCH TOTAL MODE	Batch Total ON/OFF
22 ,	0,	CODE SOURCE	Code Selection
23 ,	0,	CODE DIGIT	Number of Code Digits
26,	0,	SORT TYPE	Code Sorting Type
27,	0,	WRITE MODE	File Writing Mode Setting
28,	0,	OVERWRITE	File Overwriting Mode Setting
29,	0,	ERROR INPUT	Error Input ON/OFF Setting
30,	0,	OPTION TABLE	Option Table Ch
31,	9999,	DATA MAX COUNT	Maximum Recorded Count Setting
32 ,	0 ,12 ,0	GT TIMER	Grand Total Timer
33,	0,	BOTH MODE	Both Recording Mode Setting
41,	4,	BCD DOT POINT	BCD Decimal Point Position
42 ,	0,	BCD LOGIC	BCD Data Logic
43,	0,	SIGN LOGIC	BCD Minus Sign Logic
44 ,	0,	OVER LOGIC	BCD Over Logic
45,	0,	STROBE LOGIC	BCD Strobe Logic
46,	3,	RS232C BPS	RS-232C Transmission Speed
47,	2,	RS232C PARITY	RS-232C Parity Bit
48,	2,	RS232C DATA	RS-232C Data/Stop Bit
49,	1,	RS232C TERMINATOR	RS-232C Terminator
50,	1,	RS232C ANSWER	RS-232C Answer Mode
72,	1,	BEEP SOUND	Beep Sound ON/OFF
73,	1,	LCD BACK LIGHT	LCD Backlight Setting
74,	0,	LCD BACK LIGHT TIMEOUT	LCD Backlight Timeout Setting
75,	30,	KEY TIMEOUT	Key Input Timeout Setting
76,	1,	CH SWAP TIME	Display Switching Time Setting



The setting value of setting item 32 shows the GT TIMER setting value and hour/minute.



If any value that cannot be set is described for a setting item or the setting is described outside the range, the data before that line is loaded and the loading is stopped at the erroneous line.

Since the erroneous line number is displayed on the LCD, check the file on a PC etc. and retry loading.

4-2-5. Code table files

With the DS252, code tables (Ach, Bch) can be saved on a CF card or loaded out of it to the main body. Since the file contents are saved in text format, they can be confirmed on a PC etc.

Setting file names:	DS_TBL_A.TXT(for Ach)
	DS_TBL_B.TXT(for Bch)

Code tables are saved separately for Ach and Bch with the above file names. If these file names already exist on the CF card, the files will be overwritten.

Code tables are loaded out of the CF card by searching for the file names.

File format

In the code table files each code is described on a line-by-line basis. If the same code table number doubly exists in the files, the lower-order line will become valid.

The first 2 digits of each line show the unique value allocated for the code table and the commadelimited second field shows the code name.



The code table number is valid between 00 and 99.

For using katakana in the code name, input one-byte characters.

(Two-byte characters cannot be used.)

If any character other than those in the "Character input table" (page 109) are used in the code name, normal display or recording may not be performed.

The code name is valid up to six one-byte characters.

Note/

If any error that the code name exceeds the specified number of digits occurs, the data before that line is loaded and the loading is stopped at the erroneous line.

Since the erroneous line number is displayed on the LCD, check the file on a PC etc. and retry loading.

4-3. Maintenance mode

In the maintenance mode, check the functioning etc. of the DS252.

4-3-1. How to operate the maintenance mode

Operate the maintenance mode by selecting MAINTENANCE on the setting value display.



Ì		
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,		
	By inputting a setting No. on	Setting value display, you can go directly to Detailed setting
	display.	
	In this example, press the $\begin{bmatrix} 7 \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ $	$\begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ \\ $
	Setting Nos. correspond to the left	nost numbers on the "List of maintenance mode setting items" (page
	30).	

To return to the previous display in each display state, use the $\langle ESC |$ key.

4-3-2. Explanation of each setting/operation

70: Version Display

Display the software version of the DS252 body.

Setting name	70: Version Display (VERSION)
Display	70:VERSION D252V1.10 051228
Reference	It is simply displayed with no particular operation or setting item available.

71 : Self Test

Check the inside of the DS252 body.

Setting name	71 : Self Test (SELF TEST)
Display	71:SELF TEST EXECUTE [ENT]
Reference	 Carry out self tests with the ^{ENT}_{REC} key. By the self tests, the internal memory is checked.



If the self test result is [\times] or the tests do not end normally, the DS252 is considered to be faulty. Ask your distributor or our company for repair.

72 : Beep Sound ON/OFF

Set whether or not to allow the beep to sound during key operation and when an error occurs etc.

Setting name	72 : Beep Sound ON/OFF (BEEP SOUND)
Display	00 : OFF (sound inaudible) 01 : ON (sound audible) (initial value)
Reference	72:BEEP SOUND 01:ON
Precautions	If this is set to OFF, the beep will not sound during writing on a CF card etc.

73: LCD Backlight Setting

Set whether or not to turn on/off the backlight of the LCD

Setting name	73: LCD Backlight Setting (BACKLIGHT)
Display	00 : OFF (invalid) 01 : ON (valid) (initial value)
Reference	73:BACKLIGHT 01:ON
Precautions	If this is set to OFF, the backlight will not light. For use in a dark place, set this to ON (valid).

74: LCD Backlight Timeout Setting

Set the backlight lighting-up time.

Setting name	74 : LCD Backlight Timeout Setting (LCD TIMEOUT)	
Setting range	0000 to 9999 sec (The initial value is 0000.)	
Display	74:LCD TIMEOUT 0000	
Reference	• If "73 : LCD Backlight Setting" (page 69) is OFF, this setting is invalid.	
	• If this is set at 0000 (0 sec), the LCD backlight stays lit.	

75: Key Input Timeout Setting

Set the key input waiting time.

Setting name	75 : Key Input Timeout Setting (KEY TIMEOUT)		
Setting range	0000 to 9999 sec (The initial value is 0030.)		
Display	75:KEY TIMEOUT 0005		
Reference	 Key input is waited for by the time set here on the confirmation screens displayed when a code is input in modes other than the setting mode, when the time is displayed and when the ⁴/_{START}, ⁵/_{STOP}, ⁶/_{WRITE}, ⁷/_{ST}, ⁸/_{GT} or ⁹/_{DEL} key is pressed. If nothing is operated when the set time has elapsed, the input value display screen is restored. If the set time is 0 sec, the input value display screen is not restored automatically. Not to change a code, return to the input value display screen with the ESC key. 		

76 : Display Switching Time Setting

Set the time to switch the input value display screen.

Setting name	76 : Display Switching Time Setting(CH SWAP TIME)	
Setting range	0001 to 9999 sec (The initial value is 0001.)	
Display	76:CH SWAP TIME 0001	
Reference	Set the display time per channel on the input value display screen in the automatic display switching mode.	

77 : Data Clear

Clear the recorded data.

Setting name	77 : Data Clear (DATA CLEAR)	
Display	77:DATA CLEAR EXECUTE [ENT] 77:DATA CLEAR DONE	Clearing completed
Reference	The data having been recorded in the internal memory is cleared.	
Precautions	Once the data is cleared, it cannot be restored.	

78: Test Mode

This is for shipping checks.

Setting name	78 : Test Mode (TEST MODE)
Display	78:TEST MODE EXECUTE [ENT]
Precautions	This mode is used for factory-shipping. It is locked by a password.

Cautions in the maintenance mode

In the maintenance mode, normal recording is not performed.

Do not perform maintenance during recording of data.

The test mode is an item prepared for shipping checks. Do not use this mode. (It is locked by a password.)

4-4.Over records

By this function, recorded data outside the range set by the indicator in connection or the DS252 is identified as over status (R) and range over (U/L).

Over status (R)

If LOAD (A/D converter input over), OFL1 (net weight > 99999), or a zero alarm occurs on the indicator side, "R" is recorded in the STATE column and the data is not added to grand totals/sub totals. Also, it is not counted up.



Through the SI/F, the over status is automatically sent from the indicator. In case of BCD input, "over" recording is performed when a signal is input to pin No. 46 [over input].



The over status is recorded due to an abnormality on the indicator side. The problem cannot be solved by setting the DS252.

4-4-1. Range over (U/L)

If the limits set by Target Value Ach (Bch) and Target Range Ach (Bch) are exceeded, the following are additionally recorded in the STATE column: "U" for upper limit over and "L" for lower limit over.



1

If "range over" (U/L) and "over status" (R: See the previous page.) occur simultaneously, "over status" (R) is recorded.

"Range over" is a index for users to know whether or not the recorded value exceeds the limits. It does not affect sub totals/grand totals.

4-5.Deletion records

Use this function for deleting recorded data (not to add it to sub totals/grand totals). Only the previously recorded one piece of data can be deleted.

In the recording mode, press the

ENT key for deletion.

1

Only the previously recorded one piece of data can be deleted.

The latest data at the time of pressing the $\begin{bmatrix} BNT \\ BFC \end{bmatrix}$ key is deleted.



Deletion cannot be performed twice or more in succession.

In case of both recording, deletion is performed on both Ach and Bch.

4-6.Date/time records

The current time is recorded by pressing the $\begin{bmatrix} 3 \\ DATE \end{bmatrix}$ $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key on the input value display.

4-7. Initialization

All the internal memory of the DS252 is cleared and the setting values are rewritten and return to factory defaults.

- 1. Turn on the power while pressing the $\begin{bmatrix} 1 \\ 1 \end{bmatrix}$ key and $\begin{bmatrix} 0 \\ -1 \end{bmatrix}$ key at the same time.
- 2. The confirmation message is displayed.



Note

Deleted data and settings cannot be restored. Carefully perform this operation.

MEMO



BCD input and RS-232C interface

BCD input	76
BCD input settings	80
RS-232C interface	84
RS-232C settings	85

5-1.BCD input

The BCD input is the interface to integrate BCD data and codes in the DS252.

Adaptable connector	DDK-manufactured 57-30500 or equivalent
Data that can be input	Recorded data, codes (numerical characters, space, hyphen)
Input equipment	Digital switch, DIP switch, BCD output equipment etc.
Input logic	Selectable from negative logic and positive logic.

BCD input pin assignments

No			No		
1	СОМ		26	Code	10
2	Recorded data	1	27	Code	20
3	Recorded data	2	28	Code	40
4	Recorded data	4	29	Code	80
5	Recorded data	8	30	Code	100
6	Recorded data	10	31	Code	200
7	Recorded data	20	32	Code	400
8	Recorded data	40	33	Code	800
9	Recorded data	80	34	Code	1000
10	Recorded data	100	35	Code	2000
11	Recorded data	200	36	Code	4000
12	Recorded data	400	37	Code	8000
13	Recorded data	800	38	Code	10000
14	Recorded data	1000	39	Code	20000
15	Recorded data	2000	40	Code	40000
16	Recorded data	4000	41	Code	80000
17	Recorded data	8000	42	Code	100000
18	Recorded data	10000	43	Code	200000
19	Recorded data	20000	44	Code	400000
20	Recorded data	40000	45	Code	800000
21	Recorded data	80000	46	Over input	
22	Code	1	47	Minus input	
23	Code	2	48	Reserved	
24	Code	4	49	Strobe input	
25	Code	8	50	Reserved	

BCD data input coding

Binary	Hexadecimal	Record
MSB LSB		Character
0000	1	1
5	5	5
1001	9	9
1010	А	Space
1011	В	Space
1100	С	Space
1101	D	(hyphen)
1110	Е	Space
1111	F	Space



For inputting codes from the BCD input, select 1 or 3 under the setting item "22 : Code Selection" (page45).

For recording codes at record-every time, select [with code] under "07: Record Every Format" (page35). As a default, only the count, data and unit are recorded.

If there is any input other than 0 to 9 for each digit of recorded data, an error will result.

Input equivalent circuit

The signal input circuit inputs a signal by short-circuiting and opening between each input terminal and COM terminal. Short-circuiting is performed by a contact (relay, switch, etc.) or non-contact (transistor, open collector output, etc.)



When using a transistor, FET, or SSR, be careful about withstand voltage, leakage current and saturated residual voltage.

- Withstand voltage: 30V or more
- Leakage current at OFF-time: 100 µ A or less
- Saturated residual voltage: 0.1V or less

Strobe input



5-2.BCD input settings

Set the BCD input by selecting BCD on the setting value display.

The BCD input cannot be set if no BCD option is connected to the DS252.

5-2-1. Basic operation of the BCD input

The following shows basic operational procedures for actually setting the BCD input.



Detailed setting selection	
41 : BCD 04 : * * * * ?	The setting value is changed by the $\boxed{\Delta}$ / $\boxed{\nabla}$ key.
setting value.	If numerical input is required, set with the
Detailed setting selection	numerical keys.
41:BCD 04:***.**?	
Detailed setting	
41:BCD 04:***.**	
By inputting a setting No. on Setting v	alue display, you can go directly to detailed setting display.
In this example, press the $\begin{bmatrix} 4 \\ START \end{bmatrix}$	$\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key on the screen of \therefore
Setting Nos. correspond to the leftmost n	umbers on the "List of option setting items" (page29).

To return to the previous display in each display state, use the $\begin{bmatrix} ESC \end{bmatrix}$ key.

5-2-2. Explanation of each setting

40 : BCD Input Monitor

Display the BCD input in hexadecimals.

Setting name	40 : BCD Input Monitor (BCD INPUT)
Display	40:BCD INPUT 0-123456-ABCDE
Reference	The first digit of the second line displays over input and minus input. The 3rd to 8th digits display a code. The 10th to 14th digits display data.
Precautions	With no strobe input, "" is displayed on the second line.

41 : BCD Decimal Point Position

Select the decimal point for inputting data from the BCD.

There are five types of selectable decimal points.

Setting name	41 : BCD Decimal Point Position (DECIMAL POINT)	
Selectable items	00 : *.*** 01 : **.** 02 : ***.** 03 : ****.* 04 : ***** (initial value)	
Display	41:DECIMAL POINT 0003	

42 : BCD Data Logic

43 : BCD Minus Sign Logic

44 : BCD Over Logic

45 : BCD Strobe Logic

Select the BCD input logic.

Setting name	 42 : BCD Data Logic (DATA LOGIC) 43 : BCD Minus Sign Logic (SIGN LOGIC) 44 : BCD Over Logic (OVER LOGIC) 45 : BCD Strobe Logic (STROBE LOGIC) 	
Selectable items	00 : NEGATIVE (negative logic) (initial value (all of the above items)) 01 : POSITIVE (positive logic)	
Display	42:DATA LOGIC 00:NEGATIVE 43:SIGN LOGIC 00:NEGATIVE 44:OVER LOGIC 00:NEGATIVE 45:STROBE LOGIC 00:NEGATIVE	
Reference	The data/code logic, minus sign logic, over logic and strobe logic can be set separately.	

5-3.RS-232C interface

The RS-232C interface is the interface to integrate RS-232C-spec data, codes and command signals in the DS252.

Signal level	RS-232C-compliant	
Transmission distance	Approx. 15m	
Transmission mode	Start-stop, full-duplex co	ommunication
Transmission speed	Selectable from 1200, 2400, 4800, 9600, 19200 and 38400bps	
Bit configuration	Start bit: Length of character: Stop bit: Parity bit:	1 Selectable from 7 and 8 bits Selectable from 1 and 2 bits Selectable from none, odd and even
Code	ASCII	
Connector	D-Sub 9-pin male	
Necessary settings	 46 : RS-232C Transmission Speed 47 : RS-232C Parity Bit 48 : RS-232C Data/Stop Bit 49 : RS-232C Terminator 50 : RS-232C Answer Mode 	

RS-232C pin assignments



- * The above connection diagram shows cabling for the case of using a personal computer as DTE (data terminal equipment). If DCE (data circuit-terminating equipment) such as a modem, is connected, use a straight type.
- * Cabling should be prepared after reconfirmation of the connector configuration and signal names (pin assignments) of the equipment you are using.

5-4.RS-232C settings

Set the RS-232C interface by selecting RS-232C on the setting value display.

5-4-1. Basic operation of the RS-232C interface

The following shows basic operational procedures for actually setting the RS-232C.



Detailed setting selection	_
47:RS232C PARITY 01:0DD? ←	The setting value is changed by the Δ / ∇ key.
Detailed setting selection	le. If numerical input is required, set with the numerical keys.
47:RS232C PARITY 02:NONE?	
Detailed setting	
47:RS232C PARITY 02:NONE	
By inputting a setting No. on display.	setting value display, you can go directly to detailed setting
In this example, press the $\begin{bmatrix} 4 \\ START \end{bmatrix}$	$\begin{bmatrix} 7 \\ \text{st} \end{bmatrix} \text{ENT} \\ \text{REC} \\ \text{key on the screen of} .$
Setting Nos. correspond to the left	ftmost numbers on the "List of option setting items" (page29).

ESC key. To return to the previous display in each display state, use the

5-4-2. Explanation of each setting

46: RS-232C Transmission Speed

Set the transmission speed.

Setting name	46 : RS-232C Transmission Speed (RS232C BPS)
Selectable items	00 : 1200bps 01 : 2400bps 02 : 4800bps 03 : 9600bps (initial value) 04 : 19200bps 05 : 38400bps
Display	46:RS232C BPS 03:9600BPS
Precautions	Make the setting identical to that of the target equipment.

47: RS-232C Parity Bit

Select the parity bit.

Setting name	47 : RS-232C Parity Bit (RS232C Parity)	
Selectable items	00 : EVEN 01 : ODD 02 : NONE (initial value)	
Display	47:RS232C PARITY 02:NONE	
Precautions	Make the setting identical to that of the target equipment.	

48 : RS-232C Data/Stop Bit

Select the data/stop bit.

Setting name	48 : RS-232C Data/Stop Bit (RS232C DATA)
Selectable items	00 : 7BIT 1STOP 01 : 7BIT 2STOP 02 : 8BIT 1STOP (initial value) 03 : 8BIT 2STOP
Display	48:RS232C DATA 02:8BIT 1STOP
Precautions	 Make the setting identical to that of the target equipment. When recording codes in katakana, set the RS-232C data bit of the DS252 and PC to 8 bits. Katakana cannot be sent if the setting is 7 bits.

49: RS-232C Terminator

Select the terminator.

Setting name	49 : RS-232C Terminator (RS232C TERM)
Selectable items	00 : CR 01 : CR+LF (initial value)
Display	49:RS232C TERM 01:CR+LF
Precautions	Make the setting identical to that of the target equipment.

50: RS-232C Answer Mode

Upon receipt of data and commands from the RS-232C interface, the DS252 answers return to the host computer about the received data and commands. Select this answer format.

Setting name	50 : RS-232C Answer Mode (RS232C ANSWER)
Selectable items	00 : ECHO (echo back mode) 01 : RESULT (result answer mode) (initial value)
Display	50:RS232C ANSWER 01:RESULT
Precautions	For producing software such that two or more commands are sent in succession, be sure to program so as to send the next command after receiving the answer-back.

Details of setting

ECHO..... All received commands are echoed back.

Invalid commands (such that a code name is received even though it is set

to input codes with the front panel keys) are also echoed back.

RESULT...... Information on whether or not all received commands are executed is answered back as added to the header.



5-4-3. Communication format

The DS252 receives all data from the RS-232C interface as ASCII character strings. For the data and command formats, see below.

Data (automatic record off)	
	F A 0 ± 9 9 9 9 9 CR LF Command 5 digits Terminator Sign + decimal point * If no decimal point is included, 0 is added to the highest-order digit.
Data (automatic record on)	F A 1 ± 0 9 9 9 9 CR LF Command 5 digits Terminator Sign + decimal point * If no decimal point is included, 0 is added to the highest- order digit. Recording is not performed if the setting of "08 : Automatic Record ON/OFF" of the DS252 is OFF. For more details, see "08 : Automatic Record ON/ OFF" (page38).
Code	$ \begin{array}{c c} F & A & 2 \\ \hline F & A & 2 \\ \hline \hline$
Code table	F A 2 CR LF Command Space Terminator Unassigned Code table number Code table number Code table number

Previous data deletion	F B O CR LF
Grand total recording	F B 1 CR LF
Sub total recording	F B 2 CR LF
Data recording (Latest data recording)	F B 3 CR LF
Batch total recording	F B 4 CR LF

Note /

For inputting codes from the RS-232C interface, select 1 or 3 under the setting item "22 : Code Selection" (page45).

For recording codes at record-every time, select a format with code.

As a default, only the count and data are recorded.

If THROUGH (through recording) is selected under Record Every Format, no commands are accepted.

Recorded data

Recorded data amount	92
Data format	93
CF card	97
Recorded data examples	98

The DS252 saves the data from the SI/F (Ach, Bch), BCD (option) or RS-232C (option) once in the internal memory by REC operation. After that, it is to be written on the CF card by WRITE or GT operation.

6-1.Recorded data amount

The recording capacity of the internal memory is 700KB.

When the setting of "07: Record Every Format" comes with date/time and code for recording on Ach and Bch (filling all recorded items), recording can be performed 7,000 times at a minimum.

On Ach alone, recording can be performed 13,000 times or more.

(For one-code recording, GT operation is performed automatically when 9,999 times is exceeded.)

If ST operation or batch total recording is performed in midstream, the recorded count of input data will decrease.

When the internal memory has become full, it is attempt to write the recorded data on a CF card. (WRITE operation)

If writing cannot be performed because no CF card is inserted or the CF card does not have enough free space to write etc., the input data is not recorded regardless of subsequent REC signals, but the data is simply added.

If normal writing is performed, the previous data is cleared to continue recording. (The added data is not cleared.)

6-2.Data format

Data is recorded in CSV text format.

Data is recorded as set under Record Every Format.

6-2-1. Data labels

On the first line of data, the following recorded data labels are recorded. DATE,TIME,CODE,COUNT,CH-A DATA,UNIT,STATE,CODE,COUNT,CH-B DATA,UNIT,STATE, CH,CODE,COUNT,TOTAL,UNIT,STD,AVE,MIN,MAX,MAX-MIN,ERROR,OVER,LOWER,UPPER

Meaning of each label

DATE	Date of record
TIME	Time of record
CODE	Code (Ach, Bch, total data)
COUNT	Recorded count (Ach, Bch, total data)
CH-A DATA	Ach input data
UNIT	Unit (Ach, Bch, total data)
STATE	Data conditions (Ach, Bch) R : Over status U : Upper limit over L : Lower limit over E : Error input - : Deleted * : Data not added
CH-B DATA	Bch input data
СН	Ch display for total data
TOTAL	Total data
STD	Standard deviation
AVE	Average
MIN	Minimum value
MAX	Maximum value
MAX-MIN	Maximum value - minimum value
ERROR	Input error count
OVER	Count of occurrences of over status from the indicator
LOWER	Count of excesses of the lower limit by input data
UPPER	Count of excesses of the upper limit by input data



All of these labels are always recorded regardless of the setting of Record Every Format.

6-2-2. Recording of input data

Input data is recorded in the internal memory by any of the following operations.

- Pressing the $\left(\begin{array}{c} ENT \\ REC \end{array} \right)$ key on the front panel of the main body
- Short-circuiting the [REC] terminal and [COM] terminal on the rear panel of the main body
- · Receiving an automatic recording command from the SI/F
- Receiving a recording command from the RS-232C
- At interval-record time

When the data is recorded, the RECORD lamp is lighted.

The recorded contents differ according to the setting of "07: Record Every Format".

00: STANDARD Only the count, input data and unit are recorded. The count, input data, unit and time are recorded. 01:+TIME The count, input data, unit and code are recorded. 02:+CODE 03:+TIME&CODE The count, input data, unit, time and code are recorded. 04:+DATE The count, input data, unit, date and time are recorded. The count, input data, unit, date, time and code are recorded. 05:+DATE&CODE The count and input data and unit of Ach and Bch are recorded. 06: BOTH The count and input data, unit, date and time of Ach and Bch are 07: BOTH+DATE recorded. The count and input data, unit, date, time and code of Ach and Bch 08: BOTH FULL are recorded. Data received from the RS-232C is recorded. 09: THROUGH When this mode is selected, the other REC operations are not accepted.

07: Record Every Format

6-2-3. Recording of ST (sub total) / GT (grand total)

The sum of data having been recorded by ST/GT operation and statistical data are recorded by code (*). (*) Sorting depends on "26 : Code Sorting Type"(page47), "23 : Number of Code Digits"(page45) and "22 : Code Selection"(page45).

Meaning of data described in the "channel" column

ST CH-A	Ach sub total
ST CH-B	Bch sub total
ST TOTAL	Ach + Bch sub total
GT CH-A	Ach grand total
GT CH-B	Bch grand total
GT TOTAL	Ach + Bch grand total

About the expression of frequency distribution

When Target Value is 0 and Target Range is 99999:

LOW	-999.99	-777.77	-555.55	-333.33	-111.11	111.11	333.33	555.55	777.77	999.99
0	0	0	0	0	6	0	0	0	0	0

In case of the above example

LOW	Amount of data less than -999.99
-999.99	Amount of data from -999.99 incl. to -777.77 excl.
-777.77	Amount of data from -777.77 incl. to -555.55 excl.
-555.55	Amount of data from -555.55 incl. to -333.33 excl.
-333.33	Amount of data from -333.33 incl. to -111.11 excl.
-111.11	Amount of data from -111.11 incl. to 111.11 incl.
111.11	Amount of data from 111.11 excl. to 333.33 incl.
333.33	Amount of data from 333.33 excl. to 555.55 incl.
555.55	Amount of data from 555.55 excl. to 777.77 incl.
777.77	Amount of data from 777.77 excl. to 999.99 incl.
999.99	Amount of data larger than 999.99

How to operate ST (sub total)

- Pressing the $\begin{bmatrix} 7 \\ ST \end{bmatrix}$ $\begin{bmatrix} ENT \\ REC \end{bmatrix}$ key on the front panel of the main body
- Short-circuiting the [ST] terminal and [COM] terminal on the rear panel of the main body (on either Ach or Bch)
- Receiving a sub total recording command from the RS-232C (option)

There are two types of sub totals: middle sub totals and section sub totals, which can be set under "12 : Type of Sub Totals".

For more details, see "3-3-3. Recording of sub totals" (page24).

Note

When the setting of "29 : Error Input ON/OFF Setting"(page48) is ON, the Bch [ST] terminal on the rear panel functions as an error input terminal.

As the [ST] terminal, use it on the Ach side.

How to operate GT (grand total)

^{ENT}_{REC} key on the front panel of the main body

- Short-circuiting the [GT] terminal and [COM] terminal on the rear panel (on either Ach or Bch)
- Receiving a grand total recording command from the RS-232C (option)

By performing ST/GT operation, the previous data is processed and recorded.

Recorded data includes total data, standard deviation, average, maximum value, minimum value, maximum value - minimum value, count of excesses of the lower limit, count of excesses of the upper limit and count of occurrences of over status.

When GT (grand total) operation is performed, it is attempt to write the data on a CF card. Perform GT operation with a CF card inserted in the DS252.

By performing GT operation, the previous data is cleared.

Note

If the set unit is changed during recording, the changed data is not dealt with as the target of sub totals/grand totals and statistical processing.

After GT processing, the data of the initially accepted unit is targeted.

6-3.CF card

The data having been recorded in the internal memory is written on a CF card.

There are two ways of writing: WRITE operation and GT operation

By WRITE operation, the data in the internal memory is written as it is.

By GT operation, the data in the internal memory and statistical data are written on a CF card and the previous data is cleared.

The way to write data by WRITE operation can be selected from two types under "27 : File Writing Mode Setting"(page47).

The WRITE lamp is lighted during writing on the CF card and the following screens will are displayed.



Writing completed

WRITE? DONE

6-3-1. Specifications

Card specifications	CF type I or type II
File system	FAT16 In compliance with DOS interface guideline Ver. 1.1
File format	Text file (CSV format)
Recommended card	Hagiwara Sys-Com

Subdirectories are not supported.

The number of files that can be created is 512.

6-3-2. Writing

[WRITE] operation

• Pressing the $\begin{bmatrix} 6 \\ WRITE \end{bmatrix}$

^{ENT}_{REC} key on the front panel of the main body

• Short-circuiting the [WRITE] terminal and [COM] terminal on the rear panel (It can be on either Ach or Bch, but when the setting of "20 : Batch Total ON/ OFF"(page44) is ON, the Bch side terminal serves as a batch total command.

[GT] operation

• Pressing the 8

ENT REC key on the front panel of the main body

• Short-circuiting the [GT] terminal and [COM] terminal (on either Ach or Bch)
6-3-3. File name

A file recorded on a CF card is named as WRITE operation day (D)/hour (h)/minute (m)/second (s).extension (CSV).

Example) If WRITE operation is performed at 14:30:45 on the second day,

Recorded file is named: 02143045.CSV

1

When a file is created, if the same file name already exists on the CF card, the extension will be changed as "001," "002," "003" ... (001 to 00Z) for recording.

6-4. Recorded data examples

Recording example 1

When the setting of Record Every Format is +DATE&CODE (with date/time and code):

-	105	•	N												- 8.4
L DA	ATE	the	CODE	COUNT	CHA CATS	Her .	STATE	CODE	- 00	3.47 0	SHE DATU	10	STATE	CH	CODE)
1.1	005/11/4	10400	Mill	1	2002.0	1	11.5			1	Solars St.	-	11.1		
83	205-03-04	10.40.0	i in		-			3008			100181				
82	001/11/4	1046.0	A88		2000)			Anna			10046				
83	005.017.78	1046.0	1.100		1000			2008							
15	\$1,11,100	1046.7		-				100			10014 v				
15	005/11/4	10483	ME.		20023					- 1					-
19	908./11/a	10.46.35						Alle			10010.0				
12	P\11-800	10.463	Mill	1	3.0001										
12	905/11/4	10463	L					.4404		. 1	100161				
1,2	905/11/4	1046.2	Mil		10011										
49	905/11/9	10.46.47						3400			100151				-
12	905/11/4	1047.3	a standard and a	-	- and			-					j	ST DRA	MR
1	m				-1111	-3110			99,	20000	_ mer	and a			- 0
i.	100.01.0	10470					- 1		17-				·	17.04.0	1000
1.	346	-0904	-11111	-10000	-11111	-11111	1111	- 100	- 10	10111	11111	annese a		al or a	
1				0	0		ų,	_	0		0		2		
0	\$11 P-102	1047.2												IST TOTAL	AL.
1			Sec. 201											1.	
12	905/11/8	10473	Mile		1000						- inin t			1	
43	005/15/4	304770	2.00 m				-	Alte			_1975)				- 7
12	001/11/4	10473	Mill		100			1000	-	-	-				
83	005-15/16	10474	Auto.		1.000			1000			100101				
55	005/11/0	10434		- 1				date -			10016.3				-
15	905/11/4	1047-6	140	10	3.002.4					- 1					
18	\$1,1P1,200	104747	1.	1.23				Aite		10	100161		111		
12	905-111-44	1047.4	Mill		31021		-								
2	905/11/4	10.475					J.	Ace			100101		1.1		
	and Associates	L/	<u> </u>			_			- 14						
政府の調査を	005/11/4 005/11/4 005/11/4 005/11/4 005/11/4	1047 4 1047 4 1047 4 1047 4 1047 4 1047 4 1047 8	sea sea sea	# 10. 11	3.900 (3.000 (3.1000)			Julie Julie Julie Julie	14	4 3 10 11	10016 1 10016 1 10016 1				

Sub total data (frequency distribution)

Sub total (ST) data by each channel code and of all Hiccord farel - Bittiff ? en 18(72) 3,002 57 CH-8 -June 00000.0 10018 10016 10016 man 1000 OF CHE-A, MIR. 12 2010201 100 1000 3 000 . 027738 10015.82 of ch+8 Juck 13 130207.1 10015 10016 GT TOTALAL 28 1332461 5105.808 5009.465 1002 10016 10013

Grand total (GT) data by each channel code and of all

Recording example 2

When the setting of Both Recording Mode is BOTH FULL

			File	name	(DDhhmn	nss.CS	SV)	/	∕ Data la	bels		
Ξ.	icense# Elect	1 - (1111			Income and the					110.00	10000	688
	1420	10000					/	/				
			1	B			×	1.1.1		1.4		. 11
6	DATE	TIME	CODE	COLNT	CPH-A DATUNET	BTATE	0008	CO.N	CH-B DATURE!	STATE	CH	6008
1	2005/11/4	11271	0 Gen		1001		08	1	1002		-	
3	2008-711/4	11270	6 Geo	1	1001		Ċ8	1	50.05			
	2005/11/4	11:573	t Care	1 1	1001		06	3	101E			
5	2005/11/9	1127A	Gee :		100%		OR		\$05E			
	2005/11/4	11,275	0.Gee	1	100.1		06		50.02			
7	2005/11/4	11,200	Gee -		1000		OK		50.02			
	2005/11/4	11281	Cire ·	1	1000		08	1 1	5002			
	2005/11/4	1128.2	6 Gee		1001		OR.		5002			
10	2008/11/4	11283	0 Ger		1001		OF		90.02			
11	2005/11/4	1128-0	0 Gee		1001		O8	10	30.02			
12	2005/11/4	11:28:59	Oren :		1003		OF	11	5002			
13	2005/11/4	1129-9	Gee		100%		OF	12	9002			
14	2005/11/4	11,2919	0 Get	:11	100.1		01	13	50.02			
11	2005/11/4	11292	Cee .	- 14	1000		OK.		5002			
24	2005/11/4	11253	Cies ·	11	1001		OF	13	50.02			
17	2005/11/4	1129.0	6 Gee		100.1		OF	15	\$0.02			
18	2008/11/4	11295	Cial Care	2.13	1003		01	17	\$0.02			
11	2005/11/4	11300	0 Gee		1001		CH.	7.8	90.02			
20	2005/11/4	11.301	Ciere :	19	1001		OF.	1.6	500E			
23.	2005/11/4	11.500	tiGes :		100%		OF	20	9002			
27	2005/11/4	11309	0 Gei		100.0		OF.	- 25	5002			
22.	2005/11/4	11304	Cee :	1	1000		OK.	22	5002			
24	2005/11/4	11,205	Cies		1001		OF.	25	50.02			
25	2005/11/4	11.21 ()	6 Gee	24	1001		OF	28	5002			
28	2008/11/4	11211	6 Gei	17	1001		06	25	20.02			
27	2005/11/4	11.21.2	t Gee	25	1001		08	26	90.02			
27	2005/711/4	11.21.3	0 Gee	13	1000		OK.	27	1002			
29	2005/711/4	11.31.4	O Gee		1001		OF	28	\$002			
30	2005/11/4	11.21.5	0.Get	13	1001		08	29	5002			
11	2005/11/4	11320	Get	- 3	1001		CR .		5012			
* *	 +\00110 	18/					/	10		10		

Simultaneous recording on Ach and Bch

Recording example 3

Recording of data conditions

-	constit Earn	I - HAT212	Dið eyse		1	rtati i part	1.0141	10.742		-				655
11	195	+	s		1001121011	100		1.15	1400			2.2.2	10.01	102.
1.2	. A		. Q	. B	E	F. Jury	1	++	111 K	and a later	. 9	1	M	1 1 1
1	DATE	TDAE	CODE	COUNT	SH-ADATURE	STAT	2 (00	06 - 4	COUNT	CH-B DATU	AD 3	1418.	:0H	3000
12.	2008/11/4	111206	3410	4	21.07 kg									
2.1	2005/11/4	1312.08			T. 11.14									
4	0005/11/4	131310	sant		13.hz									
1.5	2005/11/4	131312	341		C 25.1g									
. 5	2005/11/4	121314	sant.		2507.14									
. 7	2005/11/8	131316	taid		10007.8g	1.8.1	-		Uppe	er limit	over			
1.1	2005/11/4	131318	sand	1	75.94									
1.1	2008/11/4	1913:00	said.		15 kg									
34	2008-711/4	151322	see.		75.01.14									
11	2005/11/4	101004	sand	11	 5007 kg. 	- 1k-			Lowe	er limit	over			
11	2005/11/4	1212:01	1412		10 M	- k.:								
25	0005/11/4	121208	saul	10	75.08.44									
14	2005/11/4	131330	card.	13	75.44									
+5	2005/11/4	121332	sand	+1	150 CR Ag	22,4	-		Over	status	s + up	pper	limit	over
24	2005/11/4	131354	sand.	14	75 CF Ag									
17	2005/11/4	121326	sed.	. 15	75.08.8g									
18	2005/11/4	121238	nand.		15.01 4g									
11	2005/11/4	101340	4414	11	10.01.14		-	_	Dele	ted				
22	2005/11/4	131242	sard.	11	11.14				2010	.04				
21	2005/1174	1019.64	-899038-	-	_				Inpu	t data	error			
11	2005/11/8	1513-00	name.	11	71 ct kg				mpa	uaia	01101			
22	2008/11/4	131348	sand.	+1	12.44		-	_	Data	not a	hobb			
100	2005/11/4	151350	sand.	- 11	78.08 Mg	4			Dala	nota	Jueu			
28.	2005/11/9	131357	and -	11	17.44						-			_
28	2005/75/4	121254	isteral.	10	75.64	124	-	_	Erro	r innut	ON			
177	2005/11/2	121204	141	. 11	17.14		-		LIIU	input	UN			
28	LOW	745	74.8	247	74.0	74.0	75	12.1	75.7	71.1	75.4			_
29	- 2	0.00000	1		0		10.			0				
192		1.1.1.1	1	1.	1. 1.			- 77	- 17					
14														
		16.7							4.					- 11

Conditions are expressed in the STATE column. Nothing is described under normal conditions.

Recording example 4

C = const	Earel - BRT21888 yar				- 5151 - 1
275 1 CODE 2 Sard 2 Sard	0 E COUNT CH-A DATUMT 1 100 kg 1 11 kg	P Q H STATE CODE		TATE CH DODE DOUR	e fotal
4 Cult 5 Cult 5 7 Strd 8 Sole	2 80 Mg 24 MB Mg 2 80 MD Mg 2 75 Mg			BATCH TOPAL OF A	1 263
9 Uve 10 Gulet 11 12 Sett 12 Gule	1 10017 Mg 1 10017 Mg 3 75 Mg			BATCH TOTAL OH-A	1 209
14 Line 15 Culer 18 17 Serd 18 See	4 100 kg 4 110 kg			BATCH TOTAL CH-A	3 17
0 Den 10 Culei 11 12 12 13 14 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15 15	* 20 M			BATCH TOTAL CH+A OT CH+A See OT CH+A See OT CH+A See OT CH+A Cube ST TCTAL CH+A	* 17 * 40 * 298 8 * 20 * 90 8 15 900 8
29 29 20 21	62-66/		1		

Batch total recording

Batch totals are recorded by short-circuiting terminal No. 10 on the rear panel (the SI/F Bch WRITE terminal) with the COM terminal on a batch-by-batch basis with the setting of "20 : Batch Total ON/OFF"(page44) ON. In the above example, a batch total command is input every four codes.

Troubleshooting

Classification of trouble	102
The DS252 does not operate normally.	103
The DS252 does not function normally.	105
Others	106

7-1.Classification of trouble

Find your trouble out of the following and take the remedy(ies) given on the reference page. After that, if the recording is still incorrect, check the ROM version of the DS252 body ("70 : Version Display"(page68) and then contact our company.

The DS252 does not operate normally.

The DS252 does not run.	P.103
No recording is performed.	P.103
Recording is not performed by pressing the REC key.	P.104
Recorded values are different from those displayed on the loadcell indicator.	P.104

The DS252 does not function normally.

Recorded counts are abnormal	P.105
Values of sub totals/grand totals are abnormal.	P.105

Other trouble

If you have recorded by mistake	P.106
If you have recorded by mistake	F. I U

7-2. The DS252 does not operate normally.

Trouble 1 Th	ne DS252 does not run.
Cause 1	The DS252 is not connected to a power source.
Remedy 1	Check that the power cords are securely fixed. The power supply voltage of the DS252 is 24V DC. Check the polarity and then connect the power supply.
Trouble 2 No	o recording is performed.
Cause 1	Recording is not performed until the data input terminals (SI/F and/or BCD input or RS-232C) are properly connected and recorded data is sent.
Remedy 1	Check to see if the connectors are properly inserted and check for breaks or incorrect wiring.
Remedy 2	Check that the equipment sending data to the DS252 (indicator sending SI/F signals, PC sending RS-232C signals, etc.) is in normal operation.
Remedy 3	In case of connection by the BCD input, check that the logics of the DS252 and target equipment are in agreement.
Remedy 4	If the case of connection by the RS-232C, check that the communication conditions of the DS252 and target equipment are in agreement. Settings that need to be in agreement are the following six items (five settings): transmission speed, length of character, stop bit, parity bit and terminator.
Cause 2	Recording is not performed if the setting of "Record Every ON/OFF" is OFF (invalid).
Remedy 1	Set "Record Every ON/OFF" to ON (valid).
Cause 3	Normally, the DS252 records input values in the internal memory. Writing on a CF card is performed by WRITE/GT operation.
Remedy 1	Properly insert a CF card in the DS252 and perform WRITE/GT operation.

Trouble 3	Recording is not performed by pressing the Key.
Cause 1	The setting of "Record Key ON/OFF" is OFF (invalid).
Remedy 1	Set "Record Key ON/OFF" to ON (valid) referring to "19 : Record Key ON/OFF" (page43).
Trouble 4	Recorded values are different from those displayed on the loadcell indicator.
Cause 1	The SI/F signals from the loadcell indicator include indicated values and various kinds of weight data regardless of the value displayed on the indicator each time.
Remedy 1	Select the data to be recorded by the DS252. Set it referring to "02, 03: Recorded Data Selection Ach, Bch"(page33).

7-3. The DS252 does not function normally.

Trouble 1 R	ecorded counts are abnormal.
Cause 1	Counts are stored in the battery-backed-up memory. If the power is turned off and then on again with the backup battery exhausted, such a problem occurs that records are not counted normally.
Remedy 1	The backup battery needs to be replaced. Since the backup battery should be replaced by our company, contact your distributor. The average life of the backup battery is approx. 8 years. The time may become out of sync as the backup battery is exhausted.
Trouble 2 Va	alues of sub totals/grand totals are abnormal.
Cause 1	The decimal point recorded by the DS252 depends on the decimal point on the indicator side. If the decimal point on the indicator side is changed during recording, sub totals/grand totals will not be calculated correctly.
Remedy 1	Never change the decimal point of the indicator during recording. Change the decimal point after once totaling (GT) and clearing the recorded data.
Cause 2	Data with over status (R record) added is not targeted at grand totals/sub totals.
Remedy 1	Check that over status (R record) is not added to the recorded data. The over status occurs due to an abnormality on the indicator side. Remove the abnormality referring to the operation manual of the indicator.

7-4.Others



Remedy 1The previously recorded one piece of data can be deleted. For more details, see "4-
5.Deletion records" (page72).



List of unit settings	108
Character input table	109
Introduction of options	110
Product specifications of the DS252	111
External views	112

List of unit settings

NO.	Unit	Туре	NO.	Unit	Туре
00	None		32	Pa	Pressure
01	g	Mass	33	kPa	
02	kg		34	MPa	
03	t		35	hPa	
04	lb		36	mmHg	
05	m	Length	37	kg/cm ²	
06	µ m		38	N/m ²	
07	mm		39	kN/m ²	
08	km		40	kN/cm ²	
09	m ³	Volume	41	kg/s	Mass flow
10	cm ³		42	kg/h	
11	Q		43	t/s	
12	ml		44	t/h	
13	m/s	Speed	45	m ³ /s	Flow rate
14	km/h		46	m ³ /h	
15	m/s ²	Acceleration	47	<u>0</u> /s	
16	G		48	₽/h	
17	gal	+	49	К	Temperature
18	Hz	Frequency	50		
19	kHz		51	°F	
20	MHz	Ī	52	%	Percentage
21	rpm	Speed of revolution	53	count	Number of times
22	kg/m ³	Density	54	pulse	
23	N	Force		•	
24	kN				
25	kg•m	Torque			
26	kg • cm				
27	N•m	Ĩ			
28	kN•m				
29	kN • cm				
30	t•m				
31	t • cm				

Character input table

Key	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
1 A	1	А	В		ア*	イ*	ウ*	н*	才*		
2 B	2	С	D	Е	力 *	+ *	ク*	ケ*	× ٦		
3 DATE	3	F	G	Н	サ*	シ*	ス*	セ*	ソ*		
4 START	4	Ι	J	К	タ*	チ*	ツ*	ツ*	テ*	۴ *	aracter
5 stop	5	L	М	Ν	ナ*	*	ヌ*	ネ*	ノ*		e first ch
6 WRITE	6	0	Р	Q	八*	۲*	フ*	へ*	木 *		turn to th
7 st	7	R	S	Т	マ*	* 11	А*	メ*	£*		Re
8 GT	8	U	v	W	ヤ*	ヤ*	ユ*	* ב	Ш *	з *	
9 DEL	9	Х	Y	Z	ラ*	IJ *	ル*	*	□ *		
0 F	0	-	/	*	ワ*	ヲ*	ン*	* *	° *		
					(Chara	Space acter de	letion)				
Δ				One-c	haracte	r returr	and de	eletion			

* Marks express the Japanese syllabary.



After the 10th character completes switching, it returns to the first character.

The blanks in the table function in the same way as space (character deletion).

Introduction of options

BCD input interface (option)	Included connector (57-30500 (DDK-manufactured) or equivalent)
RS-232C interface (option)	
	$\bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \bigcirc \circ \circ$

Product specifications of the DS252

Setting section					
Setting method	Front panel keys				
Storage of setting values	Setting values: Recorded in NOV-RAM (nonvolatile memory) Data: SRAM (lithium-battery-backed-up)				
Settings	"List of setting items"(page27)				
Main functions					
Recording methods	Recording by using the Recording by recording command input (REC terminal) Recording by automatic recording command input (SI/F, RS-232C)				
Records	Date, time, weighed value, code (6-digit), count (1 to 9999), sub total (9-digit), grand total (9-digit), batch total, maximum value, minimum value, average, standard deviation, range (maximum value - minimum value), frequency distribution				
Functions	Grand total/sub total recording, batch total, code sorting, deletion, over recording, interval recording, both recording				
External input signals					
Rear terminal block	Ach : (1) COM, (2) REC, (3) WRITE, (4) ST, (5) GT Bch : (8) COM, (9) REC, (10) WRITE, (11) ST, (12) GT Connector: WAGO 7pin × 2				
	Interfaces				
Rear terminal block	(6-7) SI/F-Ach, (13-14) SI/F-Bch				
Option	BCD input interface Connector: DDK-manufactured 57-30500 or equivalent				
Option	RS-232C interface Connector: D-Sub9pin				
General performance					
Power requirements	$DC24V(\pm 15\%)$ (voltage between the terminals of the DS252)				
Current consumption	150mA or less				
Inrush current	10A (800 µ sec) (reference)				
Operating conditions	Temperature:Operating temperature range: 0 to 40 Storage temperature range: -20 to 70 Humidity: 85%RH or less (non-condensing)				
Outside dimensions	96W × 96H × 110D (mm) (not including projections)				
Panel-cut dimensions	92W × 92H (mm)				
Weight	Approx. 0.8kg				

External views

Unit: mm



Unipulse Corporation International Sales Department 9-11 Nihonbashi Hisamatsucho, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-0005 Tel: +81-3-3639-6120 Fax: +81-3-3639-6130

http://www.unipulse.com/en/

	Head Office:	9-11 Nihonbashi Hisamatsucho, Chuo-ku, Tokyo 103-0005
	Technical Center:	1-3 Sengendainishi, Koshigaya, Saitama 343-0041
	Nagoya Sales Office:	CK16 Fushimi Bldg 1-24-25 Sakae, Naka-ku, Nagoya 460-0008
	Osaka Sales Office:	Sumitomo Seimei Shin Osaka Kita Bldg 4-1-14 Miyahara, Yodogawa-ku, Osaka 532-0003
	Hiroshima Sales Office:	Funairi Reiku Bldg 9-20 Funairihonmachi, Hiroshima 730-0843
	Fukuoka Sales Office:	Tada Bldg 1-16 Tsunaba-cho, Hakata-ku, Fukuoka 812-0024